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NOTICE

NoTICE is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the company
will be held on saturday, the 5th July, 2025 at 1l.30 A.M.lsr through video conferencing
("VC") /Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM,,) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the company for the

year ended on 31"t March, 2025 together with the Report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as an ordinary
Resolution:

"REsoLvED THAT the audited financial statement of the company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2025 and the reports ofthe Board of Directori and Auditors thereon
laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted,,

2. To appoint a Director inplace o-f Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal (DIN:0g599472), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director and in this
regard, pass tho following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

I
"RESOLVED4tITAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the companies Acl
2013, Mr. Bdlkrishan {qarwal (DIN:08599472), who retires by rotation at this meeting
and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as
a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.,,

SPECIAL BUSINESS
J Re-appointment of Mr, Deepak Tiwari (holding DIN: 08839075), as an Independent

Director

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

"REsoLvED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections l4g, 152 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (,,the Act,') read with Schedule it to the
Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being
in force) and the companies (Appointment and eualification of Directors) Rules,2014, ai
amended from time to time, and pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors, Mr. Deepak Tiwari
(DIN:08839075), who has submitted a declaration that he meets thJ criteria for
independence as provided under Section 149(6) ofthe Act and Regulation 16(l) (b) of the
securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Listing obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, and who is eligible for re-appointment, and in respect of whom thi
company has received a notice in writing from a Member under section 160(1) ofthe Act
signi&ing his intention to propose Mr. Tiwari's candidature for the office of birector, be
and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director oflhe company, not liable to retire
by rotation, for a2d term of five consecutive years commencing f.o- the conclusion of
this Annual General Meeting till the Annual General Meeting for the Financial year ended
31$ March, 2030.

RTSOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company (including its
Committee thereof) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are heieby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.,,

i
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4 Appointment of Mrs. Rashmi sharma (hording DrN: 1112rg66), as an IndependentI)irector

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RE99LVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ofsections r49, 152and other appricabreprovisions, if any, of the companies Act,20l3 (,,the Act',) read with Schedule IV to theAct (including any statutory modification(s) or ri-enactmentls) thereof, for the time beins
rn torce) and the Companies (Appointrnent and euarification of Directors) Rrr.r;rOii,;:
amended from time to time, and pursuant to thi recommendation of trre Nomination aRemuneration Commitree and the Board of Directors, Mrs. Rashmi Sharma(DIN:11121866),rvho was appointed as an Additional Director (category: Nor-rr""utiue
Independent).of the Company by the Board of Directors witn effect"from NI;y r;,;A;
and who holds office till the conclusion of this 356 Annuar G"n"rd M;;in;ddNdi;
terms of Section 16r of the companies Act,2013 and who has submitted a dec'iaration ihat
she meets the criieria for independence as'provided ura.. s""tior, 149(6) of the Act andRegulation 16(1)'(b) ofthe Securiries and Eichange Board oflndia (Listiri otrig"ii"" -iDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, ani who is erigibre ti. upp6irt,,"'ri, 

"ra 
i,

lespgct of whorn the company has received a notice in wiiting r.ori u rra"n,u", ,ra.,section 160(l) of the Act signifring his intention to propose Mrs. sharma,s candidatureror me orllce or Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of thecompany, not liable to retire by rotation, fir a r.t term of hue 
"onr"crtire 

y"ao
commencing from conclusion of this Annuar General Meeting till the conclusiJn of
Annual General Meeting for the Financial year ended 3 1 

.t M arch,1lii} .
RxsoLvED FLTRTHER TIrAT the Board of Directors of the company (including its
Committee thereol) and / or Company Secretary of the Company, il;;d;;;;;
::*"11i:1j" 9:alt such acrs, deedi, matters and-things as may'be consia.r"a n".".ru{,
oeslraDle or expedient to give effect to this resolution.',

Prior Approval for Related party Transactions with M/s Tongani Tea Co. Ltd.,repetitive in nature and in the ordinary course of business of th-e company for thenext 12 months period

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

:lIsoLvED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 1g8 of the companies Act,
2013 ("Act") and other applicabre.provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 orth;to.pa;i;;
(Meetings of Board and its powersfRules, 20i4, as amended till date, Regulation t 

"f 
th;Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations 

"-a 
oir"torr..

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (,Listing Reguiations-,') und ih" Co-puny,, p"[t;;
Related 

-Party 
transaction(s) and Materiality of Rerated party Transactions, and'basis the

approval of the Audit committee and recommendation of tire Board of Directo., or tt 
"lompany, approval of shareholders be and is rr"..uy u""ora.a to the Board of Directors ofthe Company to enter into contract(s/.arrang".rri1r;/ transaction(s) *ith M/r- i;;;;i

Tea company Ltd., a rerated. party within th" ."*ing of seetion'2(76) of theactlni
Regulation 2(1)(zb) ofthe Listing Regulations, to avail i-oan, on such te.mi and conditions
as the Board-of Dire*ors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggregate value of Rs.5 Crore
ror rne next l2 months period in one or more tranches, provided that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s/ transaction(s) so canied out shall be at arm,s length basis -d i;.;ii;ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe Company,

a,
z-

5.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit in its absolute
discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
finalizing and executing necessary contract(s), arrangement(s), ageement(s) and such
other documents as may be required, to finalize any documents and writings related thereto
and to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with Registrar of Companies/IrilCA
Portal, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalfof
the Company, to delegate all or any of its powers conferred under this resolution to any
Director or Key Managerial Personnel or any Officer / executive of the Company and to
resolve all such iqsues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise in this
regard and all action(s) taken by the Company in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects."

Prior Approval for Related Party Transactions with lWs Mangalam Products Pvt.
Ltd., repetitive in nature and in the ordinary course of business of the Company for
the next 12 months period

To consider,
Resolution:

_and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary

(RESOLYED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act") and other applicable provisions, ifany, read with Rule 15 of the Companies
(Meetings ofBoard and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till date, Regulation 23 ofthe
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations") and the Company's policy on
Related Party transaction(s) and Materiality of Related Party Transactions, and basis the
approval of the Audit Committee and recommendation of the Board of Directors of the
Company, approval of Shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of
the Company to enter into contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) with M/s. Mangalam
Products Pvt. Ltd, a related party within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and
Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing Regulations, to avail loan, on such terms and conditions
as the Board of Directors may deem fit, up to a maximum aggegate value of Rs.l Crore
for the next 12 months period in one or more tranches, provided that the said contract(s)/
arrangement(s/ transaction(s) so carried out shall be at arm's length basis and in the
ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit in its absolute
discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
finalizing and executing necessary contract(s), arrangement(s), agreement(s) and such
other documents as may be required, to finalize any documents and writings related thereto
and to sign and file necessary documents, e-form with Registrar of Companies/trICA
Portal, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalfof
the Company, to delegate all or any of its powers conferred under this resolution to any
Director or Key Managerial Personnel or any Officer / executive of the Company and to
resolve all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise in this
regard and all action(s) taken by the Company in connection with any matter referred to or
contemplated in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all
respects."
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Regd.Office:
l5B, HemanhBasuSarani, 3d Floor
Kolkata - 700 001.

Datel.28thMay,2025 sd/_
MANOJKUMARDAGA

(Mg. Director)
DIN:00123386

ll

NOTES:

Consider and recommend appointment of IWs. Asar$secretaries as S;;;;;tJ;,;i,;;i;; iilil;;.",,u' A & Associates, company

To consider, and if thoup
Resolution: 

_ _Jht fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary

"REOLVED TTIAT oursuant to the provisions of Section 204 0f the companies Acl 20r 3("Act") and other appricabre. p."ri!i""., ir *r, ."IJ"*,rn rure 9 of the companies(Appointmenr and Remunerati"' 
"r v""rs;aiii"..""rJ,l Rures 20r4 as amended tilldate' Reguration 24A of the securities and'Ex"lr[. ii"*o of lndia (Listing obrigationsand Disclosure Requirements; n"erlutionr,lbi;'iAil;* Regutations,,) and baiis therecommendation of the Board of Ei,."io.r'ori;; b##:and i s h ere by accord ed ;J ;:f 

: I qf^,;; .; ; #ifi ffi[]:,11",| 
t 
ff l:,["j'^::F7604) Proprietor of M/s n o,gwal e & irro.iut"f i".Jr*y Secreraries, havins a peerReview certificate no 1592/i021r*r.Juy,," p""1^L""'ilu* u"".0 of ICSI, as SecrerarialAuditor ofthe Companv t" rg,,1y"t.p"g."Lrirr ariiii* "'"., offive consecurive vearstrom the Financiar year 2025-26.tirr_*'" eir.".[i"ii*"zrzg-to, ar a remuneration asmutually agreed upon by the Board 

"toir..i"r, *j,,r. fra,,a*.
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors o-f the Company (incruding itsCommiftee thereoo and / or Company S#;';ffi: Lorrunr, be and are herehv
;::fffi i[,$:#-.T,fi 5';$;;j[11s*ll*Y,lul"l,",'* ;,,#.0 it"lt'j,ii

_ By Order of the Board
FOr NORBEN rrA & TXTONTS LTD.

l' The rerevant satement Dursuant to the provisions of section^ r02 0f the Companies Act,2013 ('Act'), setting oui ,',.-r","i"i ri.i';;il;r"i"t" aforesaid Resolurions and thereasons thereof is annexed hereto and forms part o^f ihiJtioti"".
2. The Ministry of Comorate. Affairs (,.MCA,.) vide irs 9f:$l Nos.20l2020, tOt2O22,09/2023 and 09/2024 dated t,t^y s, zizd,is; ilil:,." 2022, 2sthseptember, 2023 mdt9h September. 2024. reso,ectivery, *; ;;;;r"lrri issued in this respect (,,MCACircutars") a,owed' inter-iria, ""#;;i;;r;;'ffi;, Video.conferencing / other

lli'i;Yl;il,ytil:'.i,u,.:' oAVM;t';;ilil";;'". i'"r,* :on septernuer-zoz!,-in
cr.".,r*N,io)ir;r:ffi 

#,:Jirrffi :"rl}l1?ii:;trir1,:1,,j"r[T":i:lifjNo'SEBr/HO/cFDtpoD -2rp t crN2ozr+ J.i,t"itl# ui ror, (.,S EBr circurar,) hasprovided cerrain reraxatio^ r.o, ."rpii"il" ,irr,'"1#lJpr.visions of the srar 6irtingobligarions and Disclosure 
,n"qri..r!ri, i.*r,rrr",lr, 'lo, , (,.Listing Regutarions,,). Incompliance with these Circulars, provisi"", 

"i?ir-i"ri,i.,", o",,2013 (.,A*,.) and SEBI(Listing obligations and Discrosure n.qrir"r.rirlii..effiiions, 20t 5, the 35m AGM of the
;:fi8:lJ.;i:tr*Xa'h,*el, tcTiii\.M;;i;il;;::i1, require physicar presence or



3' Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the companies Act, 2013 the Reeister ofMembers and the Share Transfer books of the C".p"ri*i1",";;r;;.Jil;rdLour,
296 June, 2025 ro Saturday .5th J.,y,ri2,'(uoir,-alvJi,"turive) for annual closing.

4' since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, the facility forappointment of proxies bv the members will not be uuuiluurl ioilni. aEvr -iffi* rr,.Attendance Slip, Route Map and proxy Form are not annexed to this notice.
5. The company wilr conduct 

-the 
AGM through vc/oAVM from its Registered office i.e.l5B Hemanta Basu sarani, 3'd Floor, ro*ati-zoooor, which shall be deemed to be venueof the meeting.

6. corporate members intending to authorize their representative(s) to attend the Meeting arerequested ro send a."urr"d-"opy of th" ao;;J;r-o;ion (pdfljpeg format) authoiizingtheir representative to anend and vote on fl,"ii u"iuir 
"t 

ti" rr,ri.ii.g. 
-iiZ 

,"ia n"*aResolution/Authorization shall be. sent to the c".p-y uy 
",,u lr,rirgrr^.'ir. ."g#"*aemail address to, investorcare@norbentea.com.

7' The company;is-proriding fac,ity for voting by erectronic means (e-voting) throughan electronic voting system which w,r incrute remote e-voting as prescribed bv theCompanies (Management and.Adminisrration; RuLs, ZOf+ rri,"*I"ilv i, ii""rrrothe business set out in the Notice to r r" ti"n-.'".tJthrough such voting. Informationand instructi6ns including details of user id *a o"r.*"a relating to e-voting are providedin the Notice under Note'No.l9.

8' Members, hording shares in physical mode are requested to intimate changes in theiraddress alongwith proof of address/bank .rra"t" i"-irr" Registrar and Share TransferAgents (RTA), MCS share.Transfer Agent Limitei. M".b"., ri"ramg ,rr*"r'i" 
"r""il""i"mode are requested to send.the intimaiion for ctrange ;r aadress / bank mandate to theirrespective Depository panicipant.

9. Members who hold shares in physical form in murtiple folios in identical names or jointholding in the same order oi nam"s a." ..qr".t.d to write to tf," Company:J-ifa,enclosing their share certificates to erable the companyio consolidate ttreir I;tai'ngs into asingle folio. Requests for consolidation of share 'certificates rrrrri u" p.""."rr"i i,dematerialized form.

10. shareholders are also requested to take immediate action to demat their shares to avail easyIiquidity since trading of shares of the company ;;;il". compursory demat mode as perthe regulation of SEBI and also.to prevent 
"iry 

r"r, 
"ip[y.i.d Sil;; d;;;;,.'Cirn r,complied with, please ignore this).

[.gb.l.f - rnuy please note thar SEBI vide its Circular No.sEBI/HoA4rRSD&'rR.D_RTAMB /p / crN2o22/8 ial"a ziftlauary, zoi'iii"'1*ai"athe listed companies to issue securities ,i ;;;;*r;;.d_ form onry while processingservice requests, viz' Issue of duplicate rec*iti"s c".tincate; renewau exchanqe ofsecurities cerrificate; endolgment;.^ sub_division/spii*tr; 
-;-i '*"..1r[r*.rffilrr",

consolidation of securities certificates/forio.; t *.o,i*io, an-d transposition. rr.tir.. issrvide its circular No. SEBVHo/lr4lRsonr,rrnso_niauitp tcwzozuas il; il;M;,2022 has simprified the procedure una rt*a*air.J the format 
"r J".rr"rtr"i".transmission of securities' Accordingly, members *" r"q*.t"a to make ."*i*- r"qr*t,by submitting a duly filred and signJ Form rsn+ a r-sil-s, as the case may be. The saidform can be downloaded fiom the website of the Company and RfA.
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11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India C'SEBI') vide its circular dated 16th March,
2023 and 7h May, 2024 hi mandated fumishing or paN, Kyc derails (i.e. postal Address
with PIN code, email address, mobile number, bank account details) and nomination
details by physical holders of securities in prescribed forms. Relevant details and forms
prescribed by SEBI in this regard are available on the website of the company at
https://www.norbentea.com/fi nancials.hknl

12. To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and
notiry the company of any change in address or demise of any member ui soon us
possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concemed Depository
Participant and holdings should be verified.

13. Details under Regularion 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 utd as per para 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard 2, issued by
The Institute of company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Director seeking

-amointment 
an'd re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part of

the notice. Directors have fumished the requisite declarations for their re-appoiniment.

14. Details under Regulation 36(5) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure
Requirements),i Regulations, 2015, in respect oi the secretarial Auditors seeking
appointrnent ai the Annual General Meeting, form an integral part ofthe notice.

15. Electronic copy of the Notice and Annual Report of the 35th Annual General Meeting of
the company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting is being sent to all
the members whose email .IDs are registered with the companylDepoiitory paiticipants(s)
for communication purposes,

In terms of sEBI circular No.sEBVHo/cFD/PoD-2lp/crN2oz3l4 dated 5ft January 2023
and dated l9m September, 2024 and MCA circulars owing to the difficulties invoived in
dispatching of physical/hard copies of full annual report to shareholders are being sent in
electronic mode to members those email address is registered with the compan-y or the
Depository Participant (s). The members who have not updated their email uddi.r. ur"
requested to do so immediately since the requirement of sending physical copies of annual
report are dispensed with.

16. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial personnel and their shareholding
maintained under section 170 of the companies Act, 2013 and the Register of contracts
and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the
Act and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in
electronic mode.

17' Members holding shares in physical form can now avail the facility of nomination in' respect of shares held by them pursuant to the companies Act, 2013 . The prescribed Form
(Form SH 13) can be obtained from the website oithe company ana nre. If a member
desires to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a iresh nomination, he/ she
may submit the same in Form ISR-3 or sH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be
downloaded from the website of the company and RTA. Members holding shares in
electronic form may approach their respective Dps for completing the 

-nomination

formalities.

Y9t!.o desiring to avail this facility may send their Nomination Form (in duplicate) duly
filled in,io the company or its Share Transfer Agents, MCS share Transier agent timited
of 383, Lake Gardens, l"t Floor, Kolkata - 700045, by quoting their resp-ective. Folio
Numbers.
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18. Members may also note that the Notice of the 35rh Annual General Meeting, the Annual
Report for 2024-25 will also be available on the Company's website www.norbentea.com.
Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such
communication in physlcal form, upon making a request for the same, by post free of cost.
For any communicatio n, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company,s
investor email id: in en

19. CDSL e-Voting System - For e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings.
1' As. y9y ary awarer the generar meetings of the companies shal be conducted as per the

guidelines issued by the Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) vide circular No .zotzozo,
10/2A2, 09/2023 and 09/2024 dated May 5, 2020,296'December, 2022, 25rh S"pi".Uo,
ItD3 lnd l9e sbptember, 2024, respectively. The Annual Gene.al Meeiing *ilr'*u. t"
held through video conferencing (vc) o, oth". audio visual means loaiuy. 

- 
i;;"",

Members can attend and participate in the ensuing Annual Generai lvteeting *rrough
VC/OAVM.

7

2. Pursuant to the provisions ofSection l0g of the companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
*. 9gfpTl.._ffgig?.."* _and Administration; Rutes, 2014 (as ur"ra"Ol- *a
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirementi) Regulations 2015
(as amended),.6nd MCA Circulars dated April 09,2020, eprii t:, 2020'and'May Oi, ZOZO
the .company is providing fac ity of remote e-voting to its Members in ,"rp".i Li flr"
business to_ be transacted at the Annual General Meeting. For this purpose, the company
!* -*91.a 

into an agreement with central Depository services (India) rimited lcosr-;for facilitating voting through electronic."*s, us tho authorized e-voiing,s ug"*y. rr,"
facilityof casting votes by,a member using remote e-voting as well as tt e i-uoing iyst".
on the date of the Annual General Meeting will be provided by CDSL.

3. The Members can join the Annual General Meeting in the vc/oAMM mode 15 minutes
. before and after the scheduled time of the commenciment of the Meeting by following the

procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at th! Annual Geieral
' Meeting through vc/oAVM will be made avaltable to atleait 1000 members on first co*e

first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2o/o or
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, bi."cto.., Key Miageriar
Perso-nnel, the chairpersons of the Audit committee, Nomination and 

-Remuneiation

committee and Stakeholders Relationship Commiftee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the Annual General Meeting without restriction on account of first come first served
basis.

4r The. auendance of the ftSmfrs attending the Annual General Meeting through
vcloAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under S"ection 103
ofthe Companie s Act,2013.

5. Pursuant to MCA circular N o. 1412020 daled April og,2o2o,the facility to appoint proxy
to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this Annuai G"n"*l tvt..tirg.
However, in pursuance of Section 112 and, section 113 of the companies ect, 2013,
representatives ofthe members such as the President oflndia or the Governor ofa State o.
body corporate can attend the Annual General Meeting through vc/oAVM and cast their
votes through e-voting.



6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17 /2020 dated April 13,2020 , the Notice calling the Annual General Meeting has been uploaded on the website ofthe Company at www.norbentea.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websitesof the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited atwww.bseindia.com and www.nseindia,com respectively. The Annual General MeetinNotice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the Annual General Meeting)l.e.www.evotinsindia.co m.

(iv)

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FORE-VOTING AND JOINING WRTUALMEETINGARE AS UNDER:
step 1 :.Access through Depositories CDSLNSDL e-voting system in case of individual

shareholdd:rs holding shares in demat mode.
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares inphysical mode and non-individual sirareholders in a"rnat .oi".(i) The,vo:inq periotl begins on 2nd July, 2025 (g.oo a.m.) and ends on 4th Jury,2025 (5.00

p.m.). During this period sharehorders' of the company, holding shares eithlr in physical
form or in demateriarized form, as on the curoff dat e zgth hunel 2025 may cast tr,'J, uot"
electronically. Th€ e-voting modure shall be disabred by GDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) shareholders vho have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to
vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant'to SEBI circular No. sEByHo/cFD lcwD/crRtp/2020/242 dated,0g.l2.zoz0,
undir'Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reqirirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required io proiide remote
e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect ofall shareholders, resolutions. However, it
has been observed that ths pa6isipalion by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail
shareholders is at a negligible level.

' currently, there are multipre.e-voting service providers @Sps) providing e-voting fac ityi' to^ listed entities in India. This ,"""siitut"r registration on various Esp;and .uiit"r*.",' of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shariholders.' In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a pubric consultation, it
has been decided to enabre e-voting to arl the-demat account hordery oy way of a singtelogin cre{ential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Deposi6rie;7 n"porit""y
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their iote without having toregister again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless uutrr"rti"utioi uui urro
enhancing ease and convenience ofparticipating in e-voting process.

step I :.Access through Depositories cDsLA{sDL e-voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.

In terms of SEBI circular no, sEBlltlo/cEDtcMuclnnn}2}/242 dated December g,
2020 on e-voting facility provided by Listed companies, Individual sharehorders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository participants. Sharehorders are advised to update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e_Voting faciiity.
Pursuant to abovesaid sEBI circurar, Login method for e-voting and joining virtual meetingsfor Individual sharehorders hotding Jecurities in Demat mode GDSL/]\SDL is given
below:



Type of
shareholders

Login Method

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

1 ) r SLUsers who have opted fo D Easi Eas est fac ty can oglnC iI
Option wl bethrough their existin d and password

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-, Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress
as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting
option, the user will be able to see e_Voting page of the e_Voting/. servica provider for casting your vote O*irrg il,l remote e-Voting

, p"li:l or joining virrual meeting & voting during the meeting.
_ 
I Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e_
.'. Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e_Voting.,' service providers' website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at cdsl website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & My
Easi New (Token) Tab and then click on registration option.

available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication.
The users to login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit cdsl website
www.cdslindia.cbm and click on login icon & My Easi New (Token)
Tab.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and pAN No. from a e_Voting link available
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able
to directly access the system ofall e-Voting Service providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

e-Services website of NSDL. Open web

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e_Services is
launched, click on the "Beneficial Owner', icon under .,Login,, which
is available under'IDeAS' section. A new screen will open. you will
have to enter your User ID and password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
"Access to e-Voting', under e-Voting services and you will be able to
see e-Voting page. Click on company n:rme or e_Voting service
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e_Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

ces.nsdfollowing URL: h

1) Ifyou are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
browser by typing the
either on a Personal

user made



2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at httpsl/eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for
IDeAS "Portal or click at
httos ://eserv ices.nsdl.co m/SecureW eb/IdeasD irectRes.iso

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com,/ either on a personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon ,.Login,, which is available under
'Shareholder/Ir4ember, section. A new screen will open. you will have, to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number
hold with NSDL), Password/OTp and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to' NSDL Depository .site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your voter during the remote e-Voting period orjoining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

4) For OTP based login you can click
on httos !/esew ices.nsdl.c om/SecureW eb/evotins tinslo lsD.
You will have to enter your 8-digit Dp ID,8-digit Client Id, pAN No.,
Verification code and generate OTp. Enter the OTp received on
registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e_
Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the
meeting.

Individual
Shareholders
(holding
securities in
demat mode)
login through
their
Depository
Participants
(DP)

e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e_
Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company_ name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meetin-g & voting
during the meeting.

You can also login using the lo
through your Depository Partici

gin credentials of your demat account
pant registered with NSDL/CDSL for

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are
User ID Forset P rdo

to

entioned website.
ised to useadv

F on available at abovem



Helpdesk for Individual Shareh olders holding securities in demat mode for anv technical

Login type Hel esk details
Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoti ne@cds lindia.com or contact at toll free no.
1800 21 09911

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in Demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 4886 7000 and, 022 -
2499 7000

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical
mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholderg-should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on 'tshareholders" module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: l6 digits beneficiary lD,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number

registered with the Company.

,.r4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and
voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you- are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holdin
shares in Demat

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Departrnent
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

o Shareholders who have not updated their pAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number
sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend

Bank

Details

OR Date

of Birth
I(DoB) 
|

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mmlyyyy format) as

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

. If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please

enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.

tT

issues related to losin throush Depositorv i.e.CDSL and NSDL



(vD

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach

,Password creation, menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login

password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by

the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are

eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential'

For shareholders.holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting

on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same

the option 'YESA{O" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES

implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the

Resolution, ,,

click on the .eRESoLUTIONS FILE LINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution

details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A

confirmation box will be displayed. Ifyou wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else

to change your vote, click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modiff your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modifr

your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Click here to print" option on

the Voting page.

Ifa demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by

the system.

Theie is also an optional provision to upload BR"/PoA if any uploaded, which will be made

available to scrutinizer for verification.

Additional Facility for Non - Individual shareholders and custodians -For Remote

Voting only.

Non-lndividual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians

are required to log on to www.evotingindia'com and register themselves in the

"Corporates" module.
A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should

be emailed to helodesk.evotin @.cdslindia.com.

o , After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin

login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which

they wish to vote on.
o The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in

case of any wrong mapping.

a



o It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and power of Attorney
(PoA) which they have issued in favour of the custodian, if any, should be uploaded in
PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verifu the same.o Altematively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested ,p""i-"n signature of t11e
duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, ro the scrutinizEr unJ to trr"
company at the email address viz;investorcare@norbentea.com, if they have voted from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the GDSL e-voting system foi the scrutinizer to
verifr the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERSATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DI'RING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

1' .The procedure for attending meeting & e-voting on the day of the Annual General
Meeting is same as the instructions melntioned abovl for e-voting.

2' The link for vcloAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of company
will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting. :

3. Shareholders wlo have voted through Remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the
meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the .fnnual Generil Meeting.

4. Shareholders 'are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / Ipads for better
experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow camera and use Intemet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please nole that Participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/video loss due to
Fl.uctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable WiFi or

_r LAN Connection to mitigate any kind ofaforesaid glitches.
/.

il 7. shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atlJast 10 rlays-prioi
to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, emait id, mobile
number at investorcare@norbentea.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during the Annual General Meeting but have queries may send their queries in advance 10
days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat aciount numbei/folio number, email
id, mobile number at investorcare@norbenteacom. These queries will be replied to by the
company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. only those shareholders, who are present in the Annual General Meetiirg through
vc/oAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions throughiemote e-
voting and are otherwise not baned from doing so, shall be eligible to vof, througtr e-
Voting system available during the Annual Gener-al Meeting.

10. Ifany Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the Annual
General Meeting and if the same shareholders have not participated in the mee-ting through
VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders may be considered i-nvalid as
the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to tie shareholders attending
the meeting.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE, NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE CoMPAI\TYiDEPoSIToRIES

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareho.lder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), pAN lself attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar card) by
ernail to Company/RTA email id.

2' For Demat shareholders -, please update your ema id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository participant (Dp)

3'-For Individual Demat sharehorders - prease update your ema id & mob e no.
with your respective Depository participant (Dp) ;hich is mandatory while e-voting
& joining virtual meetings through Depositota.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending Annual General Meeting & e-voting fromtl: 
_C.DjL "-Vgllq !IsJ:T, ,ou "ur-*rit" 

in email tJ helodesk.evoting@cdstiridia.com oi 
"ortu"tat toll free no. 1800 21 0991 1

All grievances connected with rhe facility lor voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh-Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (cpsl)-central oepo-sitlry services (India) Limited, a wing, ii;
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower parel (East),
Yu!!?i .400013 or send an email to helpdeskevoting@.cdsrindia.com ;;;"fl-;"li rr"" no. reoo2t 099t1.

I. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM and are
attending the meeting will not be entitled to cast their voie again.

il. Investors who became 
_members of the company subsequent to the dispatch of the

Notice / Email and holds the shares as on the cut-off dite i.e.zs6 Ju;, 2025, we
requested to send the written / email communication to the company at
investorcare@norbentea.com by mentioning their Folio No. / Dp ID and client ID to
obtain the Login-ID and password for e_voting.

m. shareholders can also update your mobile number and email id in the user profile
details of the folio which may be used for sending future communication(s).

IV.

u.

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 2g6 fune, ZbZS. a
person who is not a member as on cut-off date should treat this notice for information
purpose only.

Agarwal A & Associates, company secretaries of plot No.IID/31/r, Street No. 11 I 1,

!S Qubq Unit No. 1015A, l0th Floor, Kolkata- 70016lhas been appointed as the
scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and voting process to be carried out at
the Annual General Meeting in a fair and transparent minner.
The Scrutinizer will submit a consolidated scrutinizer,s Report of the total votes cast

in favgur or against, if any, to the chairman of the company within 2 working days
from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

The chairman shall declare the result forttrwith. The Results declared alongwith the
Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the company's website ***.no.b.it"u."o,n
and on the website of CDSL and communicaied to Ur" Ito"t Eh-ffi
immediately.

VI
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Annexure to Notice
Details 

-of 
Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual

General Meeting [pursuant to Reguration 36(3) & the sEBI (Listing ouliga?ion ano
D_isclosure Requirement) Regurations, 2015 and secretariar sianaarro 2 o-n Generat
Meetingsl

* Committee positions only. Audit Committee and Stakehotders' Relationship Committee in public
uomparues have been considered.

Name of the Director Mr. Balkrishan
rwal

Mr.
Tiwari

Deepak Mrs.
Sharma

Rashmi

Director Identili catiorl Number (DIN) 08599472 08839075 11121866
Date of Birth

17-1 l- 1986
Indian Indian Indian

Date ofA intment on the Board 11fr November, 20D 24$ A 2020 28ft Ma 2025
Designation Non-Executive

Director
Independent &
Non-executive
Director

Independent &
Non-executive
Director

ualilications C.A
Ins cific functional area Accounts, Finance Acco Finance Accounts Finance

Number ofshares held in the Com Nil NI Nil
List of the directorships held in other
listed com nles

Nil 1 Nil

Number of Board Meetings attended
durin the r 2024-25

5 7

Chairmanships /
Committees of

Memberships of
other Iisted

com anies*

Nit Nil Nil

Relationships
inter-se

between Directors None None None

Remuneration details (Including
Si Fees & Commission

Rs.22,500/- Rs.18,500/- Nil

ls

07-09-1985 12-10-1991
Nationality

C.A. C.A.

patrl



EXPLNATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT.2013 ("Act")

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.3
The Board of Directors of the Company (based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee) at its meeting held on May 28,2025, recommended re-appointment of
Mr. Deepak Tiwari (DIN: 08839075) as an Independent Director of the Company, in terms of
section 149 read with Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 for a second term of five (5)
consecutive years.

Mr. Deepak Tiwari aged about 34 years, studied at Calcutta University in Commerce and
Accounts (Hons.) and holds a Bachelor's Degree. He is a Chartered Accountant holding
Membership No.307752 of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has done Diploma in
System Audit from ICAI. He has expertise in the field of Accounts, Audit, Finance and legal
matter.

Mr. Deepak Tiwari does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any
shares in the Company.

He is a Director in Raw Jute Trading & Industries Limited. He is not a Member in any other
Company.

The other details of Mr. Deepak Tiwari in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation and
Secrelarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice.

Mr. Tiwari is not related to any Director of the Company.

In terms of proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is of the opinion that
Mr. Tiwari fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for their re-appointment as an Independent

. Director, After taking into consideration t}re recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that Mr. Tiwari's vast knowledge and varied experience
will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.3 of this
Notice relating to the re-appointment of Mr. Tiwari, as an 'llndependent Director", not liable to
retire by rotation for a2"d term of five consecutive years commencing fiom the conclusion of this
Annual General Meeting till the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year ended 31"t March,
2030, for your approval.

Mr. Tiwari has given a declaration to the Board that he meet the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations: The Company has also received:-

(D the consent in writing to act as Director and
(iD intimation that he is not disqualified under section 164(2) ot the Companies Act,

2013.
(iiD a declaration to the effect that he is not debarred from holding the office of Director

pursuant to any Order issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(sEBI).

A copy ofthe draft letter for the re-appointment of Mr. Tiwari, as Independent Director setting out
the terms & conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the
Registered Office ofthe Company during normal business hours on any working day.
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Mr. Tiwari is concerned or interested in the resolution of the accompanying notice relating to his

own re-appointment.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are concemed or
interested in the Resolution ai item no.3.

IN RF],SPECT OF ITEM NO.4
The Board of Directors (based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration

Committee) appointed Mrs. Rashmi Sharma (DIN:11121866) as an Additional Director (Category:

Non-Executive Independent) of the Company with effect from May 28,2025 and who holds office
till the conclusion of this 35th Annual General Meeting (AGM) in terms of Section 161 of the

Companies Act, 2013. The Company received a notice from a Member under Section 160 ofthe
Companies Act,2013, signi$,ing his intention to propose the candidature of Mrs. Rashmi Sharma
for the office of Independent Director ofthe Company.

Mrs. Rashmi Sharma a,[ed about 39 years, studied at Calcutta University in Commerce and

Accounts (Hons.) and holds a Post Graduate Degree. She is a Chartered Accountant holding
Membership No.305496'of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. She has expertise in the
field of Accounts, Audit,,Finance and Management matters.

Mrs. Rashmi Sharma does not hold by herself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any

shares in the Company.

She is not a Director or a Member in any other Company.

The other details of Mrs. Rashmi Sharma in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulation
and Secretarial Standard 2 is annexed to this Notice.

Mrs. Rashmi Sharma is not related to any Director of the Company.

Idterms ofproviso to sub-section (5) of Section 152, the Board of Directors is ofthe opinion that
Mrs. Sharma fulfils the conditions specified in the Act for her appointment as an Independent

Director. After taking into consideration the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration

Committee, the Board is of the opinion that Mrs. Sharma's vast knowledge and varied experience

will be of great value to the Company and has recommended the Resolution at Item No.4 of this

Notice relating to the appointment of Mrs. Sharma, as an "Independent Director", not liable to
retire by rotation for a ltt term of five consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of this

Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year
ended 31't March, 2030, for your approval.

Mrs. Sharma has given a declaration to the Board that she meets the criteria of independence as

provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The Company has also receivedi

(D her consent in writing to act as Director and
(ii) intimation that she is not disqualified under section 164(2) ofthe Companies Act,

20t3.
(iiD a declaration to the effect that she is not debarred from holding the offrce of

Director pursuant to any Order issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI).
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A copy of the draft letter for the appointment of Mrs. Sharma, as Independent Director setting out
the terms & conditions would be available for inspection without any fee by the members at the
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day.

Mrs. Sharma is concemed or interested in the resolution ofthe accompanying notice relating to her
own appointment.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and relatives thereof are concemed or
interested in the Resolution at item no.4.

IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO.5 & 6
In terms of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, ('SEBI Listing Regulations'), as amended, any transactions with a related party
shall be considered material, if the transaction (s) entered into/ to be entered into individually or
taken together with the previous transactions during a financial year exceeds Rs. 1,000 crore or
10% of annual consolidated tumover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements
ofthe Company, whichever is lower, shall require prior approval of shareholders by means ofan
ordinary resolution. The said limits are applicable, even if the transactions are in the ordinary
course of business of the concemed company and at an arm's length basis. The amended
Regulation 2(1)(zc) o_f the SEBI Listing Regulation has also enhanced the definition of related
party transaction whioh now includes a transaction involving a transfer of resources, services or
obligations between ,(i) a listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on one hand and a related party of
the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries on the other hand, as well as (ii) a listed entity or any of
its subsidiaries on one hand and any other person or entity on the other hand, the purpose and
effecJ of which is to benefit any related party of the listed entity or any of its subsidiaries,
regardless of whether a price is charged or not. Further contract(s)/ arrangement(sy transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into with the related party in the ordinary course of business of t}re
Company & on arms' length basis for the next 12 months period are required to be placed before
thb Members for their approval before such contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) are given
effect to.

It is in the above context that, Resolution No(s) 5 and 6 are placed for the approval of the
.Members of the Company.

1' Background, details and benefits ofthe transaction:

IWs Tongani Tea Company Ltd (TTCL) is engaged in the business of growing & manufacturing
of tea. Torrgani Tea Estate situated in Mangaldoi Tea District of Assam belongs to M/s Tongani
Tea Company Ltd. TTCL is your Promoter Group Company. To meet the business requirements
and with an object to reduce the debt financing cost of the Company, your Company proposes to
enter into transaction(s) with lWs Tongani Tea Company Ltd., which is a Promoter Group
Company of your Company. Accordingly, transaction(s) with TTCL comes within the meaning of
Related Party transaction(s) in terms ofprovisions ofthe Act, applicable Rules framed thereunder
read with the Listing Regulations. The amount to be bonowed from TTCL will be unsecured and
payable on demand at an interest rate prevailing in the market. The total value of the proposed
transaction(s) could reach Rs. 5 Crore during the next 12 months period.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, of RPTs proposed to be entered into by your Company with TTCL for the next 12 months
period including rationale, material terms and basis of prieing. The Audit Committee, after
discussion and deliberation, has granted approval for RPTs with TTCL for an aggregate value of
up to Rs.5 Crore to be entered during the next 12 months period. The Committee has noted that
the said transactions will be on an arms' length basis and in the ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe
Company.
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Now, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related party Transaction(s)
proposed to be entered into by your company with ltcl, for the next 12 months perioJ.

Details of the transactions with rrcl, being a related party of the company, including the
information Pursuant to Rule I 5 of companies (Meetings of Boar.d and its powerrj irut"r, iot+, u,
amended till date, and SEBI Master circular No. sesyHolcFD/poD2/cl'R /p/0155 aatea
November 11,2024, are as follows:

st. Details

I Details of Summary of informati
Committee

on provided by the Management to the Audit

Name of the related party and its
relationship with the listed entity or
its subsidiary, including nature of
its concem or interest (financial or
otherwise

s Tongani Tea Company Ltd. is a promoter
Group Company of IWs Norben Tea & Exports
Ltd.("Company")

M]

Name of the Director or KMP who
is related .i

Manoj Kumar Daga, Managing Director of M/s.
s Ltd. ttComNorben Tea &

Nature, material terms, monetary
value and particulars ofthe contract
or arrangement

to borrow money not exceeding Rs. 5
Crore in one or more tranches (up to a value of
Rs.1 Crore per transaction). Amount to be
bonowed shall be unsecured, payable on demand
and rate of interest shall not exceed l0% per
annum.

Contract

d Tenure of the Transaction The loan shall be repayable on
of li uidi

Not fixed.
availabili

Value oftransaction U to Rs.5 Crore
Percentage of annual consolidated
turnover of M/s Norben Tea &
Exports Ltd considering FY2024-25
as the immediately preceding
financial

65.34%

2 Justification for the transaction Please refer to 'Background, details and benefits
of the transaction' which forms part of the
statement to the resolution No.5

Detail ter-co sits
li ubsi li

s actltrans on to an oan IN rate d adv S, cevan srpo epo
lnvestm tsen adm ore ven th s dte ent or ts s oN At cab e
details ofthe source offunds in
connection with the proposed
transaction
where any financial indebtedness is
incurred to make or give loans,
inter-corporate deposits, advances or
inyestrnents
- nature of indebtedness;
- cost of funds; and
- tenure

Not Applicable

'1,,

Description

b

c

f

J of relating or

l.

ll.

pan:



The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the related
parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is a- party to the aforesaid
transactions or not), shall not vote to approve resolution under Item No.5.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives,
other than as mentioned above is concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
resolution mentioned at Item No.5 of the Notice.

Basis the consideration and approval of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors recommend
llle grdinary Resolution forming part of Item No.5 of the accompanying Notice to the
I shareholders for approval.

Background, details and benefits ofthe transaction:

IWs. Mangalam Products Pvt. Ltd. (MPPL) is engaged in the business of real estate is your
Promoter Group Company. To meet the business requirements and with an object to reduce the
debt financing cost ofthe Company, your Company proposes to enter into transaition(s) with M/s.
Mangalam Products Pvt. Ltd., which is a promoter Group company of your'company.
Accordingly, transaction(s) with MPPL comes within the meaning of neUtiO Party transaction(s)

I t"r.m: of provisions of the Act, applicable Rules framed thereunder read with the Listing
Regulations. The amount to be borrowed from MppL will be unsecured and payable on demand
at al 

lnte|es] rate prevailing in the market. The total value of the proposed tiansaction(s) could
reach Rs. 1 Crore during the next 12 months period.

The Management has provided the Audit Committee with the relevant details, as required under
law, of RPTs proposed to be entered into by your company with MppL for the nexi 12 months
period including rationale, material terms and basis of pricing. The Audit committee, after
discussion and deliberation, has granted approval for Rprs with wtppl, fo. an aggregate value of
up to Rs. 1 Crore to be entered during the next 12 months period. The Committei has noted that
the said transactions will be on an arms' length basis and in the ordinary course ofbusiness ofthe
Company.

ll1. applicable terms, including
covenantso tenure, interest rate and
repayment schedule, whether
secured or unsecured; if secured, the
nature of securi

lv, the purpose for which the funds will
be utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such funds pursuant
to the RPT

4 A statement that the valuation or
other extemal report, ifany, relied
upon by the listed entity in relation
to the proposed transaction will be
made available through registered
e-mail address of the shareholder

Not Applicable

Any other information that may be
relevant

All important information forms part of the
statement setting out material facts, pursuant to
Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
fo of this Notice.

t.

5.



Now, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transaotion(s)
proposed to be entered into by your company with MppL for the next 12 months period.

Details of the transactions with MPPL, being a related party of the company, including the
information Pursuant to Rule 15 of companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 20i4, as
amended till date, and SEBI Master circular no. SEBVHo/cFDlpoD2/clR/pl0l5 5 dated
November ll,2024, are as follows:

Description Details

I Details of Summary of information provided by the Management to the Audit
Committee

a Name of the related party and its
relationship with the listed entity or its
subsidiary, including nature of its
concem or interest (financial or
otherwise

1V1/s. Mangalam Products Pvt Ltd. is a Promoter
Group Company of M/s. Norben Tea & Exports
Ltd.("Company")

b Name of the pirector or KMP who is
related i

NIL

Nature, material terms, monetary
value and particulars of the contract
or arrangement

Contract to borrow money not exceeding Rs.1
Crore in one or more tranches (up to a value of
Rs.50 Lakhs per transaction). Amount to be
borrowed shall be unsecured, payable on demand
and rate of interest shall not exceed l0% per
annum.

d Tenure of the Transaction
availabi of li uidi

Value of transaction to Rs.l CroreU
F Percentage of annual consolidated

tumover of IWs Norben Tea & Exports
Ltd considering FY2024-25 as the
immediately preceding finalcial year.

To be ascertained afler finalisation of annual
accounts. However, the amount shall not exceed
Rs.l crore.

Justification for the transaction Please refer to 'Background, details and benefits
of the transaction' which forms part of the
statement to the resolution No.6

J Details of transaction relating to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or ven b the listed ent or its subsid : Not A licable

t. details of the source of funds in
cormection with the proposed
transaction

Not Applicable

ll. where any financial indebtedness is
incurred to make or give loans,
inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments
- nature of indebtedness;
- cost of funds; and
- tenure

'i

st.

Not fixed. The loan shall be repayable on
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applicable terms, i
covenants, tenure, interest

ncluding
rate and

nature of se

1ll.

the purpose for which the
be utilized bY the

funds will
ultimate

beneficiary of such funds Pursuant
to the RPT

Not ApplicableA smtemenl that the valuation or
external report, if any, relied upon by

the listed entity in relation to the

orooosed transaction will be made

uuuilubl" though registered e-mail

address of the shareholder

other

All important information
statement setting out material facts, pursuant to

Section 102(1) of the Companies Act,

forms part of the

form

2013

of this Notice.

Any other information that may be

Relevant

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the^related

prif"r ,. a"nrJd th"r"rnde. (whether such related party(ies) is a party to the aforesaid

i*nru.fiqn. o. not), shall not vote to approve resolution under Item No'6'

NoneoftheDirectorsandKeyManagerialPersonneloftheCompanyor-theirrespectiverelatives,
other than as mentioned above is 

-concerned or interested, financially or otherwise., in the

...otution In"ntioned at Item No5 of the Notice. Basis the consideration and approval o-f the Audit

C"*.in*, *. Soard of Directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution forming part of Item No'6

ofthe accompanying Notice to the shareholders for approval'

IN RESPE OF ITEM NO.7

Details of Secretarial Auditor seeking appointment at-the forthcoming Annual General

nf""ting 1fu.*ant to Regulation 36[) oi ttr. Senf (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirement) Regulations, 2015.

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 28ft May' 2025 ' recommended

,ppoint .rt of cs Ajay xr,,ui ai"rroul (c.p. No. tse96 t N,t. No. F7604) Proprietor of IWs

I;anil; A & Associates, company-secretaries, _having 
a?eer Review certificate no 159212021

il;J;y ,h; peer Review Board'of ICSI, as Secretarial Auditor of the company to conduct

Secretarial Audit for a term oi five consecutive years from the Financial Year 2025-26 till the

FinancialYear202g-30,atarernunerationasmutuallyagreeduponbytheBoardofDirectorsand
the Auditors.

Brief profile and the terms of appointment are detailed as under:

Brief Profile

lWs. Asarwal A & Associates, is a professional practising Company Secretary firm in-Kolkata

il;C?;;; i;;A;ifi; ate N;Jsszt2ozt, lssued by the Peer Review Board of ICSI and

*r.l-irorpo.ut a in the year 2014 by Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal (Membership No.F7604 and cP

No.134g3). Mr. Ajay Kumar Agarwal is a-giaduate in BSC Electronics, a qualified company

Secretary and insolvency professional.
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seiured or unsecured; if secured, the

lv.
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Terms of appointment and fee
To hold oflice of the Secretarial Auditor for a term of five consecutive years from the Financial
Yeu 2025-26 till the Financial Year 2029-30, at a remuneration as mutually agreed upon by the
Board ofDirectors and the Auditors.

The fee for the year 2025-26 of M/s. Agarwal A & Associates, company Secretaries, for
!9cr91a!al Audit is being discussed and once approved by Board, i, 

"rp""t"a 
to be up to Rs.

60,000/- excluding out ofpocket expenses and taxes

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives,
other than as mentioned above is concerned or interested, frnancially or oiherwise, in the
resolution mentioned at Item No.7 of the Notice.

The Board of Directors have recommended the ordinary Resolution forming part of Item No.7 of
the accompanying Notice to the shareholders for approval.

Regd.Office: r
l58, Hemanta Basu Sar.ani, 3rd Floor,
Kolkata-700001.

Date: 28th May,2025

By Order ofthe Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

sd/-
MANOJKUMARDAGA

(Mg. Director)
DIN:00123386
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NORBEN Tf,A & EXPORTS LIMITEI)
CIN: L01 132WB1990PLC048991

REPORT BY BOARD OFDIRECTORS

TO THEMEMBERS
The Directors are preased ro present the Thirty Fifth Annuar Report rogether with the company,s AuditedAccounts for the Financial year ended 3l', Marctr, 20i;. -' 

-'-'-'

I. FINA]\'CIAL ST]MMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS
The finaacial performance of the comp*y ro. trr" y". ,nded on 3l,rMarch, 2025 is summarized berow:_

2. STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS
Rains and better tea growmg conditions during the later part of the year helped recover most ofthe majorloss in crop during the quality period early in the season. Norben,s established repute of havlng amongstthe highest Ievels of compliance of Food Safety requlrements and maximum residual level Iimil gives theCompany an excellent opportunity to enhance value. Due to mandatory early closure of pluckingproduction remained 2 Yo lower than last year whereas pnces went up by 23%o against previous yearresulting in a positive profit before deprecialion and tax.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IFANY
There has been no change in the natu." ofBurin;;;i;; ciompany during the reported financial year.
4. DIYIDEND
The Board has not recommended-any dividend for the financial year 2024-25 in view of retaining cash foryour Company's growth prospects.

5. TRANSFER TO RESER\'E
No amount was transferred to general reserve during the financial year ended 3l"March, 2025.
6. MATERLA.L CHANGES COMMITTMENTS
There are no material changes or.commitmens affecting the financiar position ofthe company which hasoccuned berween the end oithe nnanciat year oiitre -ip*v'i"-*r,i"r, the financiar ,tut"r.ni, rerare andthe date ofthe report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

in thousand

Year Ended March
31,,2025

. in thousand

Year Ended March
31,2024

Total Revenue
76777 66094

fore and TaxationFifiPro t be Conance on 15614 o
11318 10733on and TaxProfit/ oss before

4296 11032iationLess :

s807before ExProfit/ Loss Itemsonal and Tax 1733 16839Profit/ s ore Tax
7 1683Less(Add) : Current Tax

CreditTax

Incom Tax for earIier year
Pro oflston Deferred

Less(Add) : Mat Credit

J5after TaxProfi
7 17008

or lossassifiItem wlthat not be rec ed to 3134 661to these itemstax relati
170ive Income for the odotal Co

559 174
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7] SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review based on the approvar of the me1be1-oJthe company at their meeting heldon 306 December, 2024. andthe ir-p.ir"ipre ;;;;i, e;iii uy sse rta *a'N"iti"ri^itii. er.r,ung"of India Ltd" daLed 27h Jamarv,.z97s *i z+ni-"".v]'iriii, respecriverv. the Companv had issued andaI|ofied.37,94,100.(Thirty-seven lakfu ninety-four il;;;;;;" hundred) warranrs, each converribte inloone equity share ofthe Company on 31" January, 202j.

on 276 Marcll 2025, the company issued and allotred 12,1g,100 (Twerve lakhs eighteen thousand onehundred) equity shares of {10/- each,.fufly p"iJ 
"p, 

,p* lxercise of the rights attached to the saidwiurants' As a resurr, the paid-up. equity ihi." .rpiia 'oi tt,. corp-y rn"r"i..o ?"r'ir i,zs,oo,ooo(comprising r,17,50.000 eouitv ihares 
-of 

{r0/- 1".r, n riv p"iJ il; ,;-ii;};,;;db0''1'comprising1,29,68,100 equity shares of tld/_ eacr, ruty puij'up;i--" ''"'
8. INTERNAL CO]YTROL SYSTEM
Your Company has in place.^an adequate system of intemal. controls commensurate with its size,requiremenrs and the narure of operarions. Th;.; ;y.ril;";; designed keeping in view rhe narure ofactivities, Iocation and various business operations-

9. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
ITEFERDNCE TO THE FTNANCTAI siarrrrrsNra ---..
Being a listed entitv, the findncial statements ar.e pGng-tt,ough the Audit committee and the processes ofIntemal and Extemal (Tax: and ltatutory) euoits, uerole uei,ig upprou.a at the meeting of the Board of
i":ii.,rT;:li:,i"Jil5ffi;rhe 

nnanciaistat.,";;;;;";;;ry.updated o, *.-c",pi,r:, *.bsite and

10. NAMES OF COMPANIES_.WHICH IIAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITSSUBSIDIARIES, JOIIIT VENTURES ON MSOCiIiN 6'OiTPNNTNS NURING TI{E YEAR
As on 3l"tMarch, 2025, your company has no subsidiaries, ioint ventures or ^.""i""-c;;;;;l
II. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
Your companY has not accepted/renewed any deposits covered under chapter v of the companies Act,

i
|2.,4I]DITOR AND AI]DITORS REPORT
YV. P.D.Rungta & Co., Chartered 

{:"oyta1r.o (ICAI Firm Registration No.00tl50C) was appointed asStatutory Auditors of r.he comnanv for the Financiar vri ziil-z+ *...i. z'sili"pi#u"iffi to r,oraoffice till the conclusion or rat (i'hirtr F"rrth) A;*iA"i"ia rra""tlng for Financial year ended 31"rMNch ]024. The renue of M/s p.D. fi*gtu A Co., ^ S[iri"rv Auditor of Norben Tea & Exports Ltd.("rhe companv") has expired with the con-clusior;it;;;; c;;;i lJ""ii;ilr,'r,1iiffi, 
".*ended 31"1 Marclr, 2024.

IWs' A' o' MITTAL & ASSOCIATES, chartered Accountants, Firm Registration No.0r4640c was
3leointed- as statutory Auditors of^the company to rroia odt"-rro,, the conclusion of Annual GeneralMeeting held for Financial year 2023-24 t r irr. ."r.r*i"rir ,r," e**i c"r"ij'vtiffi for ttreFinancial Y eat 2028-29 .

T}e, repon ty the Audirors is self-explanatory and has no qualification, reservation, adverse remark ordisclaimer; hence no explanation or comments ty the Aoard wire required.

13. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the companies n"i ii1, and the Companies (Appointrnent andRemuneration of Managerial personnel) nules, 2014 the aoai rras appointed cS Ajay Kumar Agarwal,Proprietol of Agarwal A & Associates, Colnpary S".r"r.i"i practiclng Comp#v S-""."tu*, * it.secretarial auditor to undertake Secretarial auaiitor ttre Fy 2024_r;.-i;;i?-.i#""iirjrit i",n rr rr,.specified form MR-3 is annexed herewiti as Annexure A i, tt e .q,or"*ur" rorming part of this Report,
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The Secretarial Audit Report has following observations:

(i) The securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), vide its adjudication order no.
order/BStKrr/2024-25/30558 dated June 28, 2024, imposed a penalty ofRs. i,00,000 (Rupees one
Lakh only) on the company for violation of para 6(4) ancr 6(8) of SEBI circular
CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated october 18,2olg, in the matter relating to the resignation of the
statutory Auditor' The company has duly paid the penalty amount within the stipulated timeline.

(iD BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE), vide their letters dated December 13,
2024, imposed a fine of Rs. 5,900/- (Rupees Five Thousand Nine Hundred only) each on the
Company for non-compliance with Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (Listing obrigations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5, due to a one-day delay in submission oithe related
party tramactions for the half year ended September 30, zoz4. The company has duly paid the
penalty amount within the stipulated timeline.

The Board wish to clariiy that the company's management had at all times to the best of their intentions
and knowledge hied to pomply with all the rules and regulations specified by various statutory authorities
including SEBI and any lapse is only due to inadvertent error. The company remains committed to ensure
optimum compliances ff all applicable laws and put in place stringent system and policy checks to avoid
any such lapses in futule

14. LISTING ,

J!e. Equlty-llrares of the company are listed at the BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of IndiaLimited (NSE).

15. REPORTING OF FRATJD BY AUDITORS
There were no instances of fraud. during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors tordport to the Audit committee and/or thJ go*o ,nJ". se.tio, ii:irzl ortlr. companies Act, 2013 and therules made thereunder.

-16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, ABSORPTION,EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pursuant to Section r34(3)(m).ofthe companies Act, 2013 and Rule g of companies(Accounts) Rules,2014, is given as Annexure Ii in the Annexure forming part of this RepJ.
IT.EXTRACT OF TIIE ANNUAL RETT]RN

OF TECHNOLOGY, FOREIGN

In terms of provisions of Section 92, 134(3), reaA with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management andAdministration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Retum has been uploaded on the Company,s
website at www.norben tea. ualreturn March 2025 pdf

18. POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The level of operations of the company is below the minimum threshold of corporate SocialResponsibility reporting.

19. DIRECTORS

{-p-*11'J {9!. Board is duly constituted comprising of 7 (seven) Dircctors, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga(DIN: 00123386), Mr. Ashok VargBlj3qee-(Dnt:10+ZrOZ:;, Ms. Komal Bhotika (DrN: 08845s78),Mr. Balkishan Agarwal (DrN: !!-s99!7r, Irir. Deepak riwari prN:oaasmzl aia-lis.-ianusreecllttedee (DIN:08837933). on 28fr Mav,2025, Mrs. Rashmi sharma ronr, iruriioil;iil * *
Additional^Director (category: Non-Executive_Independent) on the Bou.a or trr" coo,full'.uq"",,o
approval of the members at the ensuing Annual.General Meeting. In accordance with trr" pi*iiion, or trr"companies Act, 2013 and the Articres of Association of the coipany, Mr. Balkishan Affiui, .Lti.., uyrotation at the ensuing Annuar Generar Meeting and being erigibre, o#ers himserf for re-rpi"ir*i"*
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20. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WHO WERE
APPOINTED ORHAVE RESIGNED DI]RING THE YEAR
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria @IN: 05353976) and Mrs. Swati Agarwal (DIN: 06804522) having
successfully completed 2 terms of 5 years each ofbeing associated with the Company in the capacity
of Independent Directors of the Company were retired from the office of Independent Directors with
effect from the conclusion of 34ft Annual General Meeting for Financial Year ended 31t March, 2024
held on 9s August , 2024 . T\e Board placed on record its sincere appreciation for the contributions made by
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria and Mrs. Swati Agarwal, during their tenure on the Board of the company.

Mr. Ashok vardhan Bagree (DIN : 00421623) and Ms. Komal Bhotika (DIN : 08845578) were appointed
as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for the first term offive years commencing from
the conclusion of 34d Annual General Meeting for Financial Year ended 31$ March, 2024 held on 9e
Atgust,2024.

Mrs. Payal Surolia resigned from the post of Chief Financial OfEcer ofthe Company with effect fiom close
ofbusiness hours on 14fr December, 2024.

Ms. Muskan Bhimrajka appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 13ft
February,2025.

21. NO. OF MEETINGS OT TTIE BOARD
The Board of Directors have met 7 (seven) times during the financial year on 29-05-2024,07-08-2024, 09-
08'2024', 12-11'2024,26-t1-2024, 04-12-2024 afi t3-02-2025. The maximum time gap 6etween any two
meetings was less than ll0 days as stipulated under SEBI's Listing Requirements, ZOiS.Oetaits ot mieting
are given in the "Corporate Govemance Report ' ofthe Annual Report.

22. SEPARATE MEETING OT INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
A Separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 12-ll-2024, Mr. Ashok vardhan Bagree
Independent Director presided the meeting. The Independent Directors at said meeting reviewed tfie
performance of the non-Independent Directors.

Details of the separate meeting of the independent Directors held and attendance of Independent Directors
therein are provided in the repoit on corporate govemance forming part of this report.

23. DECLARATION BY IIIDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Ev6ry Independent Dircctor has, at the first meeting of the Board and also at the first meeting ofthe Board
after his/her appointment, in the financial year 2024-2025, given a declaration as required 

-uls.149 
of the

Oompanies Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria oflndependence.

24. NO. OFMEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF BOARD
The details of the number of committee meetings of Board attended by each Directors during the financial
year 2024-25 is annexed herewith as Annexure C in the Annexure forming part of this Report.

25. AI]DIT COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED U/S177(8) OF COMPAIIIES ACT,2013
Further, during the year there was no recommendation of the Audit Committee which had not been
accepted by the Board.

26. YIGIL MECHANISM (WHISTLE BLOWERpOLICy)
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and employees in conformation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, to report concems about unethical behavior.

The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) has been uploaded on the Company,s website at
htrps ://www.norben tea.com/pdf/Vieil-mechanism-whistl biower-oolicv.odf

27. POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT AIID REM{'NERATION ETC.
The Company's policy on Directors' appointment ard remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence ofa director and other matters provided r:/s.178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is given as Annexure D in the Annexure forming part ofthis Report
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The Company has a well-defined process of identification of related parties and transactions with related
parties, its approval and review process. The Policy on Related Party Transactions as formulated by the
Audit Committee and the Board is hosted on the Company's website at
httos://www. norbent om/pdfl policy-on-related-and-material lv-rel partv transactions.odf

All contracts, arrangements and transactions entered by the Company with related parties during FY 2024-
25 (including any material modification thereof), were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's
length basis and were carried out with prior approval ofthe Audit Committee. All related party transactions
that were approved by the Audit Committee were periodically reported to the Audit Committee. Prior
approval ofthe Audit Committee was obtained periodically for the transactions which were plarmed andlor
repetitive in nature and omnibus approvals were also taken as per the policy laid down for unforeseen
transactions.

The Shareholders approval was obtained under Section 188(1) of the Act and Regulation 23(4) of the
Listing Regulations for material related party transaction. The information on transactions with related
parties pursuant to Section,134(3)(h) ofthe Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 in Form AOC-2 are disclosed as Arnexure E in the Annexure forming part ofthis Report.

a

29. DI,TAILS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR IIIVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY
The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments as per Section 186 of the Act by the Company, have
been disclosed in the financial statements.

30. FORMAL AIINUAL EYALUATION OF BOARD
Formal amual evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual
directors had been done during the year in the manner stated in the Criteria for Performance Evaluation of
the Directors of the Company as framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
is given as Aunexure F in the Annexure forming part of this Report

31. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELO PMENT, OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS AND
OUTLOOK
India is the second-largest producer of tea globally. Indian tea is one of the finest in the world
owing to strong geographical indications, heavy investrnent in tea processing units, continuous
innovation, augmented product mix, and strategic market expansion. As of 2022, a total of 6.19
lakh hectares of area was cultivated in India for tea production. India is also among the world's top
tea-consuming countries, with 80% of the tea produced in the country consumed by the domestic
population.

The Assam Valley and Cachar are the two tea-producing regions in Assam. In West Bengal,
Dooars, Terai and Darjeeling are the three major tea producer regions. The southem part of India
produces aboul lTo/o ofthe comtry's total production with the major producing states being Tamil
Nadu, Kerala" and Kamataka.

The global tea production (excluding China) in calendar year 2024 shows decline as.compared to
previous year due to lower crop in India and Uganda. All India tea production decreased to 1285
million kgs from 1394 million kgs, primarily due to adverse climatic conditions and mandatory
early closure of factory in North India.

Average tea prices at auction centers in North India witnessed tur increase of around { 4llKg due to
lower supply compare to previous year. Quality teas continue gaining prominence with thrust on
further improving the quality in the current year.



e) FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERIORMANCE
The details of Financial Performance and Operational Performance have been provided in the

Report of the Directors.

0 HUMANRESO I]RCE DEVELOP MENT/ INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company has built its workforce with a

kind of organization that it is. The company
people have opportunities to actualize their
stretch their intellect. Continuous efforts are

diverse background of individuals - essential for the

coflstantly endeavours to provide a platform where

maximum potential through work which helps to
on for a work-culture which encourages innovation,

transparency in communication, trust and amity.

During the current year till date, the inclement weather continues. However, with a forecast of
nor-ui *o*oorq higher crop is expected compared to previous year. The demand for quality and

clean tea is expected to remain good. with growing awareness in the domestic market on Food

Safety requirements, Maximum Residue Level limits and increased monitoring by Food safety and

Standardj autnority of India (FSSAI) over the last year has resulted in significantly increased

levels of competition for compliant teas.

Additionally, the very wide price concertina that has now developed between good quality teas and

lower quality teas in the domestic market in India, over the last few years, presents a significant

opportunity to enhance value.

Increasing extremes in weather patterns resulting from climate change presenl a substantial

challenge-to consistenlly maintain production of good quality teas through the season. Managing

the wea=ther has become the single most difiicult aspect of running tea estates and the biggest

hurdle to upgrading quality which is essential for NTEL to move up the value chain'

h) RISKS AND CONCERN' 
Th" pt*t"i.r, trd*try is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature with factors like rainfall, its

distribution, temperatrlre, relitive humidity and light intensity having its impact on yield. Since

timeiy information of weather plays a vital role for initiating steps towards application of
fertilLers, chemlcals and pesticides; steps are taken at the estate to get the weather information well

in advance.

Global .warming and increased incidence of pest and fungal attacks pose a significant threat to

standing tea cr6ps. Restrictions on use of effective Plant Protection Formulae necessitated from
.. low imlort tolerances in most importing geographies, coupled with increasing demands on tlis

front from certification programs which are necessary to effect sales both in the domestic and

export markets has exaierbated the risk of crop losses under the present climatic. conditiors.

Increased vigilance, early detection, and Integrated Pest Management practices are critical factors

in mitigating this threat.

c) SEGMENT WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is a Single Business Segment Company.

d) - INTERNAL CONTR.OL SYSTEMS & TIIEIR ADEO.UACY' @emal control system commensurate with the size, scale and

complexity of its operations which provides reasonable assurance with regard to safeguarding the

companyis assets, promoting operational efficiency by cost conhol, preventing revenue leakages

and insuring adequate financial and accounting controls and compliance with vadous statutory

provisions.

A qualified and independent Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the

adequacy and effeciiveness of intemal control systems and suggests improvements for

strengthening them.
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g) CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT
The statements made in the Management's Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be "Forward Looking Statements" within
the meaning of applicable Securities Laws & Regulations and are based on the currently held
beliefs and assumptions of our management, which are expressed in good faith and in their opiniorq
reasonable. Actual results could differ from those expressed and implied since the Company's
operations are influenced by many extemal and intemal factors beyond the control of the
Company. Several factors could make a significant difference to the Company's operations which
includes climatic conditions, economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government
regulations and taxation, natural calamities, raw material price changes, domestic supply and prices
conditions, company's success in attracting and retaining Key Personnel, integmtion and re-
structuring activities, general business and economic conditions over which the Company does not
have any direct control.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Board of Directors ofthe Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy
for the Company including identification therein of elements of risk, which in the opinion of the
Board, may threaterl the existence of the Company. The Board monitors and reviews periodically
various aspects of.Risk Management policy. At present no particular risk whose adverse impact
may threaten the eiistence ofthe Company is visuatized.

PREVENTION qF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKSHOP
Your Company is committed to provide a work environment which ensures that every employee is
treated with dignity, respect and equality. There is zero- tolerance towards sexual harassment
which invites serious disciplinary action.

The Conipany has established a policy against sexual harassment for its employee. The policy
allows every employee to fieely report any such act and prompt action will be taken thereon. The
policy lays down severe punishment for any such act. Further, your Directors state that during the
year under review, there were no cases of sexual harassment reported to the Company pursuant to
the sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,2013.

SIGNIT'ICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/
COURTS/TRIBUNALS
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concem status and company's operations in
future.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMEI{T
In accordance with the provisions of the Section 13a(3)(c) & 134(5) of the Companies Act,2013,
your Directors confirm that:

Applicable accounting standards have been followed in the preparation ofthe Annual Accounts for
the year ended 3 1 't March, 2025 with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any.

Accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently andjudgments and estimates have

been made which are reasonable and prudent and have been applied so as to give a true and fair
view ofthe state of affairs ofthe Company in respect ofthe financial year ended 31"'March, 2025
and ofthe loss ofthe Company for that period.

Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

Annual Accounts for the year ended 31't March, 2025 have been prepared on the basis of going
concem concept.

The Directors have laid down the intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company
detailing the policies and procedures and these intemal financial conlrols are adequate and are
being operated effectively.

hoper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions ofall applicablg laws
and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

lv.

1.



36. PARTICULARS OF DIR.ECTORS' REMUNERATION U/S. t97 (12) OR THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013R.E,AD WITTI RULE 5(1) OF COMPANIES (A}POINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIALPERSONNEL) RULES ,2014

sl.
No Name Designatioll

Yo ir:.cllease /
decrease in

remuneration

Ratio of the
remuneration ofeach

director : madian
remuneration ofthe

employees

I Kumar Managing Director 4.25:l
2 Ashok Vardhan B Independent Director # NIL
3 Komal Bhotika Independent Director # ML
4 Balkrishan A al Non-Executive Director # NIL
5

6 Tanusree Chatt ee Director # ML
Additional Director (Non-
Executive T c

#

8 N Tiwari 138.28

9
CFO(Resigned on
14.12.2024

-22.73

l0
#Director's sitting fees is not considered for the purpose ofthis calculation.

The Company has 57 employees as on 3l"tMarch, 2025.

Percentage increase in the median remuneration ofemployees in the financial year: Nil.
Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees compared with percentile increase / decrease in
managerial remuneration is Nil.

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy ofthe Company.

!ase1 9f the-Tea Garden employees are decided through a Tripartite Agreement between workers
Associations, state Govemment and Representatives of the Tea Industry. [".r.r".uti* puia to ott",t^Ill"l::: 

i:.fi*d. No variable remuneration is paid. Remuneration paid is as per tr,e nemunJration eoti"y
ot the Company.

37. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
As on March 31, 2025 the company did.not have any employee in the category specified in Rule 5(2) of
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManageriai pe;sonnel) Rul e", Ztit+.
38. COMPLIAIICE CERTTFICATE
GOVERNANCE

ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE

Certificate l"g..dirg compl iance of conditions of corporate govenumce is given as Annexure G in the
Annexure lbrming part ofthis report.
39. COMPLIANCE WITII SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEf,,TINGS
During the year under review, the 

-company 
has dury complied with the applicJr. p.oriri*, or tr,.

secretarial standaxds on Meetings.of the_Board- of Direitors 1Ss-t; and cene.ai rvr""tingr'risSlrru.a uy
The Institute ofcompany Secretaries oflndia (ICS!.
40. APPRECIATIoN

]he pirectols wish to place on record their appreciation for the support received from the Local Gram
Panchaya! Govemment Departments, Stale Bank oflndia, Stakeholder; and all others.

By Order ofthe Board
For NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD.

sd/-
MANOJI(UMARDAGA
(Chairman & Mg. Director)

DIN:00123386
Date : 28h May,2025

'"1

NIL

Dipak Tiwari Independent Director # ML

7 Rashmi Sharma ML
CS

Payal Surolia
Muskan Bhimraika CFO(Joined on 13.02.2025)

Regd.Office:
158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3.d Floor
Kolkara-700001



ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXI]RE. ftA'

FORM No. MR3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended On 3I.. March, 2025
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 ofthe Companies

(Appoiintment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rulis, 2014) 
'

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3rd Floor, Kolkata-700001

We have been appointed by the Board of Directors of Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(L01132W81990PLC048991) (hereinafter called the Company) to conduct Secretarial Audit of the
Company for the financial ltear ended 31" March, 2025.

We have conducted the secretarial audit for the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corpbrate practices by Norben Tea & Exports Limited (hereinafter called the
Company) having its Registered Office at 15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3'dFloor, Kolkata-700001, West
Bengal.Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification ofthe Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retums filed and other
records maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its o{ficers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31"Marcl1 2025, complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
cogtpliance-mechanism in place to the extenL in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

lVe have examined the books, papers, minute books, registers, forms, and retums filed and other records
maintained by Norben Tea & f,xports Limited ("the company') for the financial year ended on 31"t
March,2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act,20l3 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and ByeJaws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Extemal Commercial Borrowings ;-ftr{o/
applicabk to the Company during the Audit Pefiod)

(v)The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board oflndia
Act, 1992 ('SEBI Acr')

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 201 1;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Prohibition oflnsider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

7.9



(c) The Securities- and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2018.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021 . (Not applicable to the con panJ, duting the Auiit pefiod) .

(e) The^Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulatiors.
2008.({ot applicable to the con pan! during the Audit period) .

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue ard Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The securities and,Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulatio ns, 2o2l;(No,
Wlicable to the company iluting the Audit periad).

(h) The-Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 21tgt (Not
Wlicable to the colnpany during the Audit pefiod).

(vi) The following Acts, over and above other laws are specifically applicable to the company as per the
Management Representation letter issued by the compary ofeven date:-

(a) The Tea Act,1953and rules thereunder
(b) The Food Safety and Srandard Act,2006 and Food Safety and Standards Rules,2011.
(c) The Tea waste control (Order) 1959
(d) The Tea Marketing Control Order2003

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses ofthe following:

(D Secretarial Standards with respect to the board and general meetings issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

(iD The securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure' Requirements) Regulations,20l 5 entered into by the company with Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. mentioned above. Subject to the following observation

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), vide its adjudication order no.
Order/BS/KHll024-2580558 dated June 28, 2024, imposed a penalty of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees
one Lakh only) on the company for violation of para 6(A) and 6(8) of sEBI circular
CIRyCFD/CMD1lll4l2019 dated October 18, 2019, in the matter relating to the resignation ofthe
Statutory Auditor. The Company has duly paid the penalty amount within the stipulated timeline.

(ii) BSE Ltd. and National Stock Exchaage of India Ltd. (NSE), vide their letters dated December 13,
2024, imposed a fine of Rs. 5,900/- (Rupees Five Thousand Nine Hundred only) each on the
company for non-compliance with Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, due to a one-day delay in submission of the related
party transactions for the halfyear ended September 30, 2024.
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We further report that:

(i) The Board ofDirectors ofthe Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the Audit period were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

(ii) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining fuither
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

(iii)All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried unanimously as recorded in tlre
minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant'documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, the Company
has complied with the laws applicable specifically to the Company.

We further report that therg are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulatiors and guidelines.

We further report'that during the period under review, based on the approval of the members of the

Company at their'meeting held on 30th I)ecember, 2024, and the in-principle approvals granted by BSE

Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., dated 27h January, 2025 and 24n Jantary,2025,
respectively, the Company had issued and allotted 37,94,100 (Thirty-seven lakhs ninety-four thousand
one hundred) warrants, each convertible into one equity share ofthe Company.

Further, the Company iSsued and allotted 12,18,100 (Twelve lakh eighteen thousand one hundred)
equity, shares of {l0/- each, fully paid up, upon exercise of the rights attached to the said warrants. As a

result, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company increased from tll'75,00'000 (comprising

1,Ir,50,000 equity shares of {10/- each tully paid up) to {12,96,81,000 (comprising 1'29'68,100 equitv
sfiares of {10/- each fully paid up).

We further report that during the Audit period there are no specific events /actions which have a major

bearing on the Company's affairs.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28th May, 2025

For AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretades

sd/-
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

ProPrietor
C.P No.:13493
M.No.: M604

Peer Review No.15922021

UDIN: F007604G000467 679

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Arnexure - A and forms an

integral part ofthis repon.

3q



ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OT'DIRECTORS

.ANNEXUREA'
(An integral part of Form No.MR!)

To,
The Members,
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15-B, Hemanta Basu Sarani,
3'd Floor, Kolkata-700001

Place: Kolkata
Date: 28tb May, 2025

Our report ofeven date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secrethrial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the hudit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of tl'ie contents of the Sicretarial records. 'ihe verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts 6he reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes urJ p.*ti""r, *"
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of
the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
mles and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of management. Our examination was limitea to t1te verification 

-of p.o..d*", on t".t
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe company.'

FoTAGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

sd/-
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

Proprietor
C.P No.:13493
M.No.: F7604

Peer Review No.l 59212021

UDIN: F007604G000467 679



AIINEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OFDIRECTORS

AIII\EXURE,"B"

STATE OF PARTI UNDER THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014

A.

company's operations involve substantial consumption of energr when compared to the cost of
production. wherever possible enerry conservation and efficiency measures have been undertaken.

of energy:on conservationtaken or impactThe sten

Th Com bus lnvolness ves use fo onl fifor nalpany Sces of eaT eaves Forenergy v pro mg growln
of ea the moreST naluralon ourcesres of onthan fossil fuels

iD
The Company constantl
use of altemate souices
pipeline or bullet tanker

y considers up-gradation of existing machineries and processes to optimise
of enerry for processing of Tea leaves. Availability of natural gas through
is eagerly awaited, which the Company can readily use at a much lower cost

sources of

to both the Com and the environment.

pments purchased, weightage is given to conservalion of electrical energy to reduce

tal inves C

For all new equi
term costs

B.

D
The company subscribes to tlie Tea Research Association and implements their guidance and
recommendations, The Company has no R&D Unit as such. Furthermore, the Company is moving in
the direction of certifications such as Rain Forest Alliance and follows the Plant Protection Code
Maximum Residue Levels and the Trustea Code.

absorption:The efforts made towards technolosv

ent or imDortdevelThe benefits ved like oroduct imnrovement- cost reduction- Droduct

insecti
lis hi

di

cost fo cl anddes ti idesc forused ln tea areas haspes spraymg $owlng
reduced the tems them a usafe thechOnly s ucedappeanng pproved ed, by Company prod

becomhas thwl orem hamarkets fferent

substitution;
The per hectare

llt ) reckoned from the besinnins ofthe last three yearsIn case of imported technolo gy (imoorted durins

The details oftechnola tm

:NIL
Whether the technolc been full absorbed :NA

d) Ifnot fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and
andthe reasons there :NA

f)eveincurred onThe exnenditr Research and onment:
As covered under item above.

C.

ear in terms of
Nit

the ows
gn Exchangeinflows during the year and the Foreiin terms of actualThe Foreien Exchange earned

36

Conservation of energy
i)

iii)

Technology absorption

iD

the financial year) -
:ML

b) The year ofimport

ir)

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo



AI\NEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANNEXURE "C"

NO. OT MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEE OF BOARI)
The details of the number of committee meetings of Board attended by each Director during the financial
year 2024-25 as follows:

Audit Committee

Nom on & Remuneration Committee

Stakeholders Rela tionship Committee

29 2024 Mr an Kumar Mr. Balkishan al, Mrs. Swati
2 07-08-2024 MI an Kumar Jhal Mr. Balkishan A al Mrs. Swati
3 12-tt-2024 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Mr. Balkishan Ms. Komal Bhotika
4 04-12-2024 Mr. Ashok Vardhan B Ms. Komal Bhotika

Mr. Ashok Vardhan B Mr. Balkrishan Ms. Komal Bhotika

S.No.

I 29-05-2024 Mr an Kumar Jhalari4 Mr. Balkishan A Mrs. Swati al
2 t3-02-2025 Mr. Ashok Vardhan B Mr. Balkishan Ms. Komal Bhotika

Date of
Meeting

Attended by

MI
MI

Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwat,
Kumar

07-08-2024 MI
MI

Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, Mr. Balkishan Agarwal, Mrs. Swati Agarwat,
Mano Kumar

4 t2-11-2024 MI
MI

Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Balkishan Agarwal, Ms. Komal Bhotika,
Kumar

5 13-02-2025 Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Ms. Komal Bhotik4
Mr. Manqi [umar Daga

57

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.

S.No. Date of
Meetins

Attended by

I

5 t3-02-2025

Date of
Meetins

Attended by

S.No.

1 29-05-2024

2



ANNEXTJRE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRf,CTORS

AIrh{I'X1t11p ' 6.ptr

REMUNERA ON POLICY

The Remuneration Policy of Norben Tea & Exports Ltd. (the "Company"), is designed to athact,
motivate and retain exceptional employees in a competitive market. The policy reflects the
Company's objectives for good corporate govemance as well as sustained long-term value creation
for shareholders.

Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees involving a balance
between fixed an{ incentive pay which reflect short and long term performance objectives
appropriate to the working ofthe Company and its goals.

Introduction

APPO OFDIRECTORS
Appointrnent of Director(s) is being done as per the applicable provisions and schedules of the
Companies Act. 2013.

BOARD RE ERATION
Efforts are made tg ensure that the remuneration of the Board of Directors matches the level with
comparable comianies, whilst also taking into consideration board members, required
competencies, efforts and the scope ofthe board function, including the number of meetings.
Fixed remuneration
Whole Time Directo(s) of the Board of Directors will receive a fixed salary, along with basic
perquisites which is approved by the shareholders ofthe Company at a General Meeting.
Sittins Fees
The Board shall fix the sitting fees for the Directors and Members of the various Committees,
taking into account the extent of responsibilities and time commitment, the results of the Company
keeping in view fees paid by other peer companies, which are similar in size and complexity.
Incentive programme. bonus oay. etc.
Presendy, the Company does not have any incentive programme.
Reimbursement ofexpenses
Expenses in connection with board and committee meetings are reimbursed as per account
rendered.
Pension scheme
The Board of Directors is not covered by any pension scheme or a defined benefit pension scheme.

REMIJNERATION TO OTHER KEY MANAGER]AL PERSONNEL
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee submits proposals conceming the remuneration of
the other Key Managerial Personnel to ensure that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in
comparable companies.

Other Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of
the following components:
' Fixed salary
" Bonus
.. Benefits, e.g. use of company car, telephone, broadband, etc.

Fixed s alary
The fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable components
Presently, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
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Personal benefits
Other Key Managerial Personnel will have access to a number of work-related benefits, including
company car, free telephone, broadband at home, and work-related newspapers and magazines. Thi
extent of individual benefits is not necessaxily same for each individual member ofthe Executive
Management.

Other Key Managerial Personnel may be covered by insurance policies:
'' Accident insurance
' ' Health insurance
' . Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

Notice of nation
The employment relationship is terminable by giving a months, notice on either side.
Redundancy pay
As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Retiiement Benefits

94o $qv MandgerialPersonnel are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a
defined benefit pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is irovided.
Gratuity is covered as per the Act.
Disclosure
The total remunefation ofthe Key Managerial personnel is stated in the Annual Report.

REMUNERATION TO OTHER EMPLOYEES
The Nomination
other employees

& Remuneration Committee submits proposals conceming the remuneration of
and ensures that the remuneration is in line with the conditions in comparable

Th9 fixed salary shall be based on the market level and increase therein shall be periodically
reviewed based on performance appraisal.
Variable comoonents
Presenfly, the Company does not have a fixed policy for any incentive based pay or any variable
component in the salary structure.
Other benefits

companles.
other Employees entitled to a competitive remuneration package consisting of the following
components:
' ' Fixed salary
" Bonus

Fixed salary

Housing/Housing Repair Allowance.
Notice of termination
As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Redundancy pa.y

As per the prevailing laws of the State Govemment.
Retirement Benefits
other Employees are not covered by any employer administered pension plan or a defined benefrt
pension scheme. However, pension scheme under provident fund is provided. Gratr.iity is covered
as per the Act.

Criteria for determininc qualifications. positive attributes and indenendence ofdirector
The Company will foll
and under Regulation
qualifications, positive

ow the guidelines as mentioned in Schedule IV ofthe Companies Act,2013
l9(4) ofthe Listing Regulation with the Stock Exchange(s) in determining
attributes and independence of director.

-(o



ANNEXT]RE TO REPORT BY BOARD OX'DIRECTORS

AIYNEXT]RE."E"

FORM NO. AOC.2

Particulars of contracts / arrangements made with related parties (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-
section (3) ofsection 134 ofthe Act and Rule 8(2) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,2013 including
certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's Iength basis: NIL
The Company has not entered into any contract or arangement or transaction which is not at arm's length
basis during the year under review.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at armts length basis: NIL
The Company has not entered into any material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's tength
basis for the year ended Ir{arch 3 1, 2025.

Name of the
related
party
Nature of
Relationship

Nature of
Contracts/
Arrangements/
Transactions

Duration ofthe
Contracts/
Arrangements/
Transactions

Salient terms of
the Contracts /
Arrangements /
Transactions

Amount
(Rs. In
Lakhs)

Amount
paid as
advances,
if any
(Rs. in
Lakhs)

IWs Tongani
Tea Co. Ltd.
(Promoter
group
Company)

Sale oftea plant/
cutting

12 months I Sale oftea
Ieaves at
prevailing
market price
based on
standard
industry terms.

NA 14.85 Nit

4o

Date(s) of
approval
by the
Board, if
any



I"yI qryrt evaluation by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees andIndividual Directors shall also be done as outlined bel,ow:
The company will follow a seven step system ofthe following processes for evaluation:
METHODOI,OGY
What the Company hopes to achieve?
clearly identified objectives will eaable the company to set specific goals for the evaluation andmake decisions abgul th€ scope of the review. Such issues as the complexity of the performance
probJem, the size of the board, the stage of organisational life cycle a"J;g.ii;;;""il;;;;;
tl,e firm's competitive enviroruhent wi deteririne the issues the compan! wishes to evah]ail.
Who will be eval,uated?
with the objectives for the evaluation set, the company needs to decide whose performance will bereviewed to meet,them.

Jh9 Company needs to consider three groups: the Board as whole (including board committees)
individual dir6ctors (including tne rotes otctrairp".ron *d/o. l.uJ l;;;;ilil;;;;;il;;
goyenxrncq personnel (generally the CFO and Company Secretary).
What will be evaluated?
Having established the objectives ofthe evaluation and the people/groups that will be evaluated to
achieve those. objectives, the next stage involves the 

"uul*iioriU""o,ning specific. il;-;;
necessary to elaborate these objectives into a number ofspecific topics to ensir" ifrut tft" ""a*ti*(1) clarifies-any potential problems, (2) identifies the root causelsj of tr.t"r" p.our".i-a r:x"rtthe practicality of specific goveralce solutions, whe.ever possibie. This is'necessaif ;h.i-#;;
board is seeking general or specific performance improve,ments and will suit uo-i, ,."tirg to
improve areas as diverse as board processes, director skills, competenci", -a rllotiuutiorr,-;"'r",
boardroom relationships.
Who will be asked?
Intemally, Board members, the CEO, senior managers and, in some cases, other management
personnel and employees may have the necessary information to provide feedback on el"meits ofa
company's govemance system.
Externally, owners/members and even financial markets can provide valuable data for the review.
Similarly; in.some situations, govemment departments, major customers and suppliers ,nuy tuua
close links with the board and be in a positionio provide useful information on its;rf;;;;..- -
What techniques wilt be used?
Depending on the degree of formality, the objectives ofthe evaluation, and the resources available,
boards may choose between a range ofqualitative and quantitative techniques.
Who will do the evaluation?
The next consideration in establishing evaluation framework is to decide who the most appropriate

person is to conduct the evaluation. If the review is an intemal one, the chairperson;Jril""ly
conducts the evaluation. However, there are times when it may be more appropriate t" J.-G!ri'"
either to a non-executive or read director, or to a board commiuee. In'ihe'case 

"f ;;;revaluations, specialist consultants or other general advisers with expertise in the areas 
"f ";r.p;.;;govemance and perlormance evaluation may lead the orocess.

What do you do with the results?
since the Board as a whole is responsible for its performance, the results of the review will be
released to the board in all but the most unusual of iircumstances. Where the evatua-tion ou.yeciives
are focused entirely on the board, board members wilr simply aiscu.. *,"' .erur-'q";;;
themselves.

ANNEXT]RE TO REPORT BY BOARD OFDIRECTORS
ANNEXURE."F"

FO ON
DIRECTORS OF' THE COMPANY

The Board will assess its performance each year. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee tsresponsible to create a process for making such assessment to report annually to the Board on the
results of the assessment process. The purpose of the assessment is to increase the effectiveness of
the Board. The various Committees of the Board shall annually conduct a self-assessment of theirperformance and respective Terms of Reference.

4L



ANNEXURE TO REPORT BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANIIEXURE."G"

COMPLIANCE CERTIF'ICATE ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OFCORPORATE

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
Norben Tea & Exports Limited
(CIN:L01 132WB 1990PLC04899 1)

we have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate Govemance by Norben Tea &
Exports Ltd. ("the company"), for the year ended on 31"t March, 2025, as stipulated in relevant
provisions of securities, and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligationi and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, ofthe said Company with stock exchanges.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to proceduris and implementations thereof, adopted by the c"ompany ror
ensuring compliance oflhe conditions of the Corporate Govemance. It ii neither an audit nor an
expression ofopinion on the f[rancial statements ofthe Company.

In our opinion aqd to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, read
with the matter described hereinabove, we certifo that the Comiany has complied wiih the conditions

9f &rporur." Govemance as stipulatid in chapter rv of seeurity and Exchange Board of India
(Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20i5 ('the Regula:tions,), ofthe said
Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neitler an assurance as to t1te fufiire viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted ihe affairs oi the
Cgimpany.

PIot No.IlD/3 l/1, Streer No.l I I l,
PS Qube, Unit No.10l5A.
10m Floor, Beside City Centre 2,
Kolkata - 700 161.

FoT AGARWAL A & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

sd/-
CS Ajay Kumar Agarwal

proprietor

C.P.No.13493' M.No.:F7604
Peer Review No.1 59212021

UDIN : F007604G000 53607 7

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 03.06.2025
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I

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOYERNANCE
Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) of the sEBI Oirring ourigutio-ns and Disclosure Reouirements)

Regulations, 20 I 5 (.,Listing Regulation,.)

Company's Philosophy

.,

The company firmly believes in adhering to established corporate govemance practices in order toprotect the interests of investors and Jnsure treatthy groi,th 
"itrr" c".piry. 

"il; ^a;-p-y
stringently complies with the corporale. govemur"" p.rii.", as enumerated in the securities andExchange Board of India (Listing obliiations ,"a ijir"-f'"r*" R"qrir"r"ntrj ["grr"i[r., zors{hereinafter referred to as rhe Sent listi*ng n.grfutln.,lOiit.

The company believes that the concept of corporate govemance is founded upon the core valuesof transparency, empowerment, aciountab ity, inE"p.ralnt monitoring and environmentalconsciousness. The Company has always giu", it, b;;;if".t. to uphold and nurture these valuesacross all oper4tionar aspects. As u r"unJto this end, tr," co,npury formed a Board comprisingreputed experti, and inducted persons of eminence u, rra"p"na.nt Directors. rhese peoptecontribute to cofporate strategizing and proviae extema fe.rp;;il;;;.""*ildfi;.,
Board of Diiectors

The Bd'ard.,of Directors comprises professionars drawn from diverse fields, resurting in a widerange ofskills and experience being brought to the Board. The co,,puny,. poti"y ir roLuirruin u,optimal combination of Exec 'tive ana No"n-r"ecrtir; Di;";;o.r. As on 31.tMarch 2025, tbe Boardcomprised an Executive chairman cum Managr'ng Di;;;;, and five Non-Executive Directorsincluding four Independent Directors. 1y comlan-y also has two women Directors on its Board.The detailed profiles of all the Directo*' ,i.- ur"ii*r" on ir," -c;;iJil 
ivebsite:www.norbentea.com. The company complied with the provisions of Section 149 of thecompanies Act,2013 and Regulition 17 (ljof the senriitirg n"g"l"ti;;r, 2d;;rth'i".p".t tothe Composition of the Boarci.

The company has an efficient and well appointed Board. The committees are all dury formed andMr' 
].viraj 

riwari, company secretary or tir" co-p*y, u"t, u, tt" Secretary to all the committeemeetings of the company. Alr committee meetings'are- attended by such other Executives asrequired.

The,Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring that Board procedures are followed and,regularly reviewed. The company Segretary ensures'tlrai' a1 ."r"u-t inro..,Jor,"a'J,u,. *adocuments are made availabre io tire Directois 
"rJ 

ih; ;;;". management for effective decision-making at the meeting.

Composition of Board
The company has an Executive chairman & Managing Director and more than 50%oof the totarnumbers of Directors are Independent Directors wio'bring ira.p.na.rt-ui"..ffii"*l n fi,"Board's deliberations and decisrons.
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During the financi al year 2024-2025 the Board met 7 (seven) times. The gap between any two meetings didnot exceed 120 days.

*Y-Yes,N-No
# Completion oftenure of2 consecutive terms of5 years each.
The information as required under Schedule V of Listing Regrlation is as under:

# Completion oftenure of2 consecutive terms of5 years each.
The names of listed companies wherein the above Board members are directors and category of,
their directorship are detailed below. None of the Directors on the Board ofthe Company has been
debarred or disquali fied from being appointed or continuing as director by SEBI/IvICA or any such
statutory authority.
The Independent Directors comply with the definition of Independent Direciors as given under
section.149(6) of the companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(l) (b) or ttre iEei Listing
Regulations, 2015. At the time of appointment/reappoiniment and at ihe commencement of each
financial year, every Independent Dirictor signs a declaration to confirm that he/she fulfills all theconditions for being an Independent Director ris laid down by tr,, ru*.'- wrr 

"appointing/reappointing any Independent Directors / Non-Executive Directors on the Board,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NR Committee) considers the criteria as laid down in
the companies Act,2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBi Listing Reguratiors, zots -J sou.a
Diversity policy.

s. Date of
Meetihg of
Board of
Dircctors

Attended
MLMa oj
Kumar
Daga

M| Ronjan
Kumor
Jhalaria #

Mrs.
Swati
Agarual

Mt. Dipak
Tiwafi

Ms.
Tanusree
Cha eiee

l4r. Ashok
I/ardhan
Bagree

I 29-05-2024 Y Y Y Y Y Y N N2 07 -08-2024 Y Y Y Y Y N N3

4
09-08-2024 Y N N Y Y Y Y12-tt-2024 Y N Y Y Y Y

5 26-11-2024 Y N N Y N Y04-t2-2024 Y N N N Y N Y Yt3-02-2025 Y N N Y Y Y Y Y

Name

Relationships

Directors
Inter-s€

Category Designation

No. of
Board

Meetings
attended

Total No. of Membership/
Chairmanship held including

the Company

Membershi Chairmansh

Attendance
at last AGN,I

Mr. Manoj Kumar
Daga Not related

Promoter
Executive
Director

&
7 I 2 1

Yes

Mr- Ranjan
Kumar Jhalaria #

Not relat€d
Independent &
Non-executive
Directo.

Director 2 2 1 Yes

Mrs.
Agarwal #

Swati
Not related

Ind€pendent &
Non'ex€cutive
Director

Director 2 I 2 Yes

Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal Not related

Non-executive
Director

Director (liable to
retire by rotation) 5 No

M. Dipak Ti\rari Not related
Independent &
Non-ex€cutive
Director

Director ,7
I No

Ms. Tanusree
Chatterjee Not related Director 5

Mr. Ashok
Vardhan Bagree Not related

Independent &
Non-executive
Director

Director 5 4 3 No

Ms.
Bhotika Not related

Independent &
Non-executive
Director

Director 5 2 5 I No
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Mr.
Balkrishan
Agarwal

Ms Komal
Bhotika

Y

t6
ft'

No. of
other

Director-
ship held

Maraging
Director
(lialle to retire by
rotation)

I

2

Independent &
Non-executive
Director

I

Komal



S.N. Listed Entities Cate of Directorshi
IN:001233Man Kumaro

ea Company Ltd.Tongani T Non-Executive

Ashok Vardhan B 00421623
2 Shri Vasuprada plantations Limited Independent

otikaalKom Bh 08 48 55 87
J

The Cochin Malabar Estates
Industries Limited

and

Shri Vasuprada Plantations Limited Independent

The names ofthe listed entities where the person is a Director and the category of directorship.

ofthe Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors holds any shares in the comoanvt Ashok vardhan Bagree, rndependent oirectors hol;;#;h;;# ii,J6o.;r"""'r*'r
Number of conimittees in which a Director may serve excludes private limited companies, foreigncompanies and eompanies under Section s ortft Comp;es Act,2013 sha, be excruded.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees nor chairman of
ilHfl:'ffiffTlllTi:fllfi]i*r";il,Aiirui o'i"Listing R"s,tti-j.;;;;,, ui',i" puuri"

Ytlb:*l'i/gl"irmanship of the Audit comminee and stakeholders Relationship committee ofall the Public Limited Companies have;.;;;ffi;;#;;.
Relationship between the Directors inter_se:

*No other Directors in the Board are inter se related to each other.
shares and convertibre Instruments herd by Non-Executive Directors of the company intheir own trame, as on March 31,2025 

"." 
ua iofforn., 

.^-'*

Familiarization programme imparted to Independent Directors
The Company in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of the L isting Regulations, hastaken initiatives to familiarize ts Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights,responsibi lities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, businessmodel of the company etc. through various programs. The details of Familiarization programmeimparted to independent directors has been uploaded on th

None
excep

Nam oe f the Di rrecto Na Diem of rothe rrecto Name of Rela tionshi

NA

Name of the Director SharesNo ofE u
Ashok Vardhan B 2036
Balkrishan Nil
Di Tiwari Nil
Komal Bhotika Nil
Tanusree Ch

o
e Company's website atil

the-independent-directors .pdf
024-

4s

-and es-l -to-
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Nil



Skills/E rts/ m etencies of the B

Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board. the Indeoendent Directors fullill the

of Directors
Skills and its description

o

v
'a

s >
E

ra

5
a'r:

.s
a

o
(.)

F.

Leadershi erience of runnin rNe -enex
Experience in leading well-govemed organisations, with an
understanding of organisational systems and processes business and
regulatory environment, strategic planning and risk management,
understanding of emerging local and global trends and management of

and erformance.accountabi
E ience of craftin Business Stra

developing long-term strategies to grow small tea
plantation business, cpnsistently, profitably, competitively and ina
sustainable manner in diverse business environments and changing
economic conditions. ,

Experience in

Finance and accou E erlence -
fi isatiE enefl ce m anh 1n nan tac mI enxp dt t fo or on oalanagem gan ng

thwl unan derstan o accof un dan anclfin al sta entem ts
Ex rrence ln oYerse la and com lex Su Chain -

ence in overseeing large and complex supply chain operations,
management of innovations, understanding of emerging technologies

Experi

act.udin inform atidi theircln I tal on otechn oI andS disru ti e
Understandin use of Information across the tea value chain -
Understanding the use information across the value chain, ability to
axticipate market and weather driven changes and disruption
iinpacting business and appreciation of the need to realise value and
controls across the o anisation.

conditio ns specified in these regu lations and are independent of the Manaqement
The Board of Director is opinion that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions which are
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specified in the Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and are independent ofthe Management ofthe Company.
Committees of the Board
With an objective to have a more focused attention on various facets of business, better
accountability and ensuring compliances, the Board has constituted the committees, which comply
with the requirements of the companies Act, 2013 as well as SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015,
these comprise:

L Audit Committee
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
3. Share Transfer Committee
4. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
5. Allotment Committee

Each of these committees has been mandated to operate within a given framework. The details of
composition of the above mentioned committees is available on the company's website:
wwrv.norbentea.com



3 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee (AC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. The terms of reference ofthe Audit Committee are as per the guidelines set out in Regulation 1g of the srei risting
Regulations, 2015 read, with Section.lTT of the companies nit, zotz. arier description of the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are:

a. overview of the company's financial reporting process and the discrosure of its financial
information.

b. Recommend the appointment/removal of statutory auditors, nature and scope of audir fixationofaudit fee and payment for any other services to statutory auditors.c' Review with the management the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board.

d' Review with the management, statutory and internal auditors, the intemal audit reports and the
reports of statutory auditors.

e. Review of the adequacy and effectiveness of Intemar Audit function, the intemar control
system- of the company, compriance with the company's poricies ani 

"pfri""ui" 
rr*, *a

regulations.
f' Approval of appointment of CFo (i.e. the whole-time Finance Director or any other person

heading the,finance function or-discharging that function) after assessing tt.-quurin*tiorr,
experience.p background, etc. of the candidate.

Jlle 4udit Committee may also review such matters as considered appropriate by it or referred toit by tho Board.

Composition and olher details
The Audit committee of the Board comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ashok Vardhan
Bagree, Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal and Ms. Komal Bhotika.

Mr. Ashok vardhan Bagree, chairman of the committee, has expert knowledge of finance and
accounting.

Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria, forgolng chairman of the committee was duly present at the 34thA11y{ General Meeting held 
91_{h 

Aueust, 2024.The company compries wittrthe negutation ta
of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 with respect to composition, role and responsibititiJs oiauait
Committee.

During the financial year 2024-2025 the committee met 5 (five) times as follows:

,1No. Ddte Meet udit Comrrlittee Attended
29-05t024 an Kumar Jhalari4 Independent Director

Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Exicutive Director

MI, Ranj

Mrs. Swati Director
2

an Kumar Jhalari4 Independent Director
Mr. BalkrishanAgarwal, Non-Eiecutive Dir€ctor

Mr. Ranj

M1s. Swati Director
l2-11-2024 Vardhan Bagree, Independent Director

Mr. Balkfshan Agarwal, Non-Exacffive Dir€ctor

Mr. Ashok

Ms. Komal Director
4 04-12:2024 Mr, Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Independent Director

Ms. Komal Director
5 L3-02-2025

The gap between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days.
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I

Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Ind$en6nt Director
Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Director
Ms. Komal Bhotik4 Independent Director

3



4 Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors to
evaluate compensation and benefits to Executive Director(s). The broad terms of reference are to
determine and recommend to the Board, remuneration payable to Executive Directors,
remuneration policy of the company and appraisal of performance of the Directors. The
Remuneration Policy is given in the Annexure'D'to the Directors Report.

Cotttposition and other details
The Committee comprises of 3 (three) Directors viz: Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Mr. Balkrishan
Agarwal and Ms. Komal Bhotika.

Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, Chairman of the Committoe.

The functions of the Committee include:
o To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence ofa Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to remuneration
ofthe Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

o To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors, Non Independent Directors,
the Chairman, the Board as a whole and other Committees

. To devise a policy on Board diversity. Identifring persons who are qualified to become a
Direot'6r and who may be appointed in senior management.

. To evaluate, review and recommend to the Board, the remuneration of the Executive
. Directors, striking a balance between performance and achievement.

o To discuss and decide whether to extend or continue the terms of appointment of
Independent Directors, on the basis ofthe report of performance evaluation of Independent
Directors.

During the financial year 2024-2025 the Committee met 2 (two) times as follows:

Dale of Meeting of Not ination & Remuneration
Committee

Attended by

I 29-05-2024 Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalari4 Irdependent Director
Mr. Balkrishan Agarwal, Non.Executive Director
Mrs. Swali Asarwal. tndeDendent Director

2 t3-02-2025 Mr. Ashok Vardhar Bagree, Independent Dircctor
Mr. Balkishan Agarwal, Non-Executive Dir€ctor
Ms. Komal Bhotika, Independent Dircctor

Remun eratio n of Direclo rs
A sitting fee of Rs.2500/- is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending each meeting ofthe
Board and Rs.1000/- for each meeting of the Committee. During the Financial Yeu 2024-2025,
following was the remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending board meetings anil
other committee meetings:

Director Sitting Fee
(Rs.)

Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree 19,500
Mr. Balkishan Agarwal 22,500
Mr. Dipak Tiwari 18,500
Ms. Komal Bhotika 19,500
Mr. Ranian Kumar Jhalaria 10,000
Mrs. Swati Agarwal 10,000
Ms. Tanusree Chatteriee 13,s00

4*
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The remuneration and terms of appointment of the Managing Director are approved by the Boardof Directors and the sharehotllf 
"^r 

the Company il;;;i 
'o 

covemment approvar wheneverrequired as per the provisions of the companier a"t, zori". rn" company has'onii 
"r".,,irol ti*"Director, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga *to i, tfr. fr,f-Airg Oi.""* (MD) of the Company. He hasbeen appointed for a term of 5 years *on ottoitioZi iof inztzbs u. p". ,t 

" 
agrl#*t out"a28/0712023- He is paid a sarary of Rs.6,60,000r- rn p*r ix Lakhs Sixty Thousand) annuary,besides other perquisites. Notice or payment ir'ri"'u- or ,otr"e is ,roi'rppri""li" L p* ,r,"Agreement. The Company shall not puy *y ,"u..*"" t 

", 
u, p., the Agreement. The Companyhas not given any stock option.

During the Finan cial Y ear 2024-2025, folowing was the remuneration paid to Executive Director:

5 Stakeholders Relationship Committee
stakeholders Rerationship committee (SRC) was constituted by the Board of Directors. TheCommittee responsible for looking after and'dealing-*itt g.i"roun.. received from investors ofthe Company.

Composition and other deiits
The committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz: Mr. Ashok vardhan Bagree, Mr. BarkrishanAgarwal, Mr' Manoj Kumar Daga and Ms. Komal Bhotika. Mr. A.h;kt;lh;'riffi ir,rr"Chairman of the Committee.

Mr. Niraj Tiwari, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

The functions of the Committee include:o Considering and resolving the.grievances of security holders ofthe Company;o Providing guidance for overa, improvement in the iuality ofservices toinvestors;o Dissemination offactually correct information to investors and the public at large;'o Any otler matter(s) out of and incidental to these functions and such otrr.. 
".u1rrig*a tythe Board

with effect fuom 27h June, 20r l in terms of sEBI circular No.cIR/o rA}/2/2olr dated 3d June,2011, processing and updating of alr 
-investor 

complaints in SEBI compraints Redress system(SCORES) is being done on behalfofthe Company Uy its nfa.
Share Transfer Comm ittee

!n terry of the Listing Regulations, equity shares of the company can only be transfened indematerialised form. Requests for demateiialisation of shares are processed and confirmationthereof is given to the respective depositories i.e. Nationaiiecurities Depository Limited INSDL]and central.Depository Services (India) Limited tcDSLl, within the .trfu;t;i.;il;iio.n rt.date ofreceipt of share certificates/ letter of confirmation'aftei due verification.

6

Director Salary Contribution
toPF&
others

Other
Benefits

Tenure of Service
Contract

Total
remuneration

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Mr. Manoj Kumar
Daga 21,600

5 years from
0l/0412024 to
3t/03t2029

6,81,600

the financial ear
Num laiber o Sf ohareh ders com nts rece ed d I

tisfactumN ober f com aints tno SO toved th sa on fo shareho ders NilNumber of din com Iaints Nil
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I Variable
Component

(Rs.)

6,60,000



7

The functions of the committee include:

. Approval oftransmission or transposition of securities of the Company;o To deal with rematerialization requests and IEpF related matters;
o overseeing ofthe performance ofthe registrar and share transfer agents ofthe company;o Redressal of shareholders' complaints relating to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual

reports and non-receipt ofdeclared dividend, .rmong others;
o Disposal of old stationeries of dividend warrants, among others;. Issue ofduplicate share certificates;
o Recommending upgradation measures for the standard of service to investors;

' Any other matter(s) out ofand incidental to these functions and such other acts assigned by
the Board.

Composilion and other details
The committee comprises of 4 (four) Directors viz.: Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Mr. Balkishan
Agarwal, Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree and Ms. Komal Bhotika.

There were nglvalid requests pending for share transfer as on 3l"t March,202s. All requests for
dematerialisation and rematerialisation of shares received in the aforesaid period were confirmed
or rejected into the NSDL/CDSL system.

A call Centre has been set up to attend to the calls of the investors. The call Centre number is
(033)2210-0ss3.

Allotment Committee

Allotment Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors. The Committee responsible for
looking after and dealing with activities related to Preferential Issue ofconvertible warrants.

Composition and other details
The committee comprises of 3 (three) members viz: Mr. Ashok vardhan Bagree, Independent
Director, Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga, Managing Director and Mr. Niraj riwari, company Secretary.
Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree, is the Chairman of the Committee.

The functions of the Committee include:

o To issue private placement offer letter in form PAS-4 to the proposed allottees and receive
the application of securities thereof;

o To accept and/ or reject the application not completed in any respect and give reason
thereofto the concemed applicant;

o To authorize allotment of warrants/securities ofthe Company;
o To authorize conversion of warrants into equity shares of the company upon exercise of

option attached to warrants;
o Undertake any other activity in this regard as may be required by the companies Act, 2013

or the Rules, from time to time;
o To do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary for effective implementation

of the foregoing acts



I;*".llt $,*'ior 
management including the changes therein since the close of rhe previous

Name Designation Date of A intment Date of CessationNira Tiwari CS 09-11-2023
Muskan Bh kalmra CFO 13-02-202s

al Surolia CFO 29-05-2023 t4-12-2024
Santosh Kumar Jha 01-07-2021

No special resoftrtion was pdssed during the previous year through postal ballot.
No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

10. Means of Communication

The same is also displayed on the Company,s W
This website also displays official news releases.
The presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts, ifany, are displayed on the website

General Shareholders Information
AGM: Date, Time and Venue

!-lpauy: th9 5ft Juty, 2025 at tt:30 A.M. Through
Video Conferencing (.,VC,') /Other Audio Visu"al
Mears ("OAVM").

Apil2024 toMarch 2025.

9

The quarterly financial resurts are being sent to the Stock Exchanges and are being published inthe newspapers: The Financial Express-(English d;;r;t il in vemacurar, Duranto iarta (Bengalidaily) as per proforma prescribed under tire iisting n6ffiion.

11.
(a)

Dividend Payment Date

Listing on Stock Exchanges ::
National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited,
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, plot no: C/l
G Block, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd,
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 25n Floor,
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001.

ebsite: www te .com.

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financial Year

Financial

ended

No. of
Special

Resolution

MembeN presented by
Person Proxy

2022 29
I li30 a-m 48
11.30 a-m. NiI 662024

VideoThrough c)c'v
Other Audio Visual Means C'OAvM')

the* stercd OfIiceRegi I1.00 a.m. 2 60

5I

8. Senior Management

General Body Meetings )

Location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings held:_

Date

28.07.23 Nil

Listing fees for the year 2025-26 have not yet been paid.

(e) Stock code:

National Stock Exchange oflndia Limited ::
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. ::

NORBTEAEXP
519528



Notice for resumption oftrading in the
shares of the Company issued by the
BSE Ltd on January 05, 2023 wherein
BSE Ltd. has informed that the
suspension in trading of equity shares
of the company revoked w.e.f.
January 13, 2023.

stock Market Price Data and performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:High, Low during each month in last financial year:

(h) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

(D Share Transfer System:

The Company's shares are covered under the compulsory dematerialization list and transferred ,
in dematerialised form throL gh the depository ryri".r of both NSDL & cosr. rurther, tr,tcs
share Transfer Agent Limited also 

-being -the 
company,s demat Registrars, ."qu"rt, r".

dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmation is given by tf,em to the iesoective
depositories i.e. National S-ecurities Depository Limited (N-SDL) and centrai D"o'*-o
Services India Limited (CDSL) within 15 days.

Market Price at NSE Sensex
Month & Year High Low High Low

14.15 12.15 75124.28 71816.46
76009.68 71866.01
81770.02 70234.43

11.98 81908.43 78971.79
17.41 11.51 82637.03 78295.86

S '24 26.36 l4.s l 85978.25 80895.05
22.40 13.s3 84648.40 79137.98
18.16 14.90 80569.73 76802.73
23.42 15.03 82317.74 77560.79

23.57

78735.41 73141.27
32.86 78741.69 72633.54

6z

(0 Resumption oftrading at BSE

(g)

MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited
383, Lake Gardens, 1st Floor,
Kolkata - 700 045.
Telephone:033-4072 405 I ; F ax: 033-4072 4050
E-mail: mcssta@rediffinail.com
Website : www.mcsregistrars.com

April'24
May'24 13.75 11.60
June '24 13.52 I 1.30
Julv '24 13.51
Ans'24

Oct'24
Nov '24
Dec'24
Jan'25 )1 1-7 80072.99 75267.59
Feb '25 46.22 26.01
Mar'25 52.04



(j) Dishibution of shareholding:

shares
Category (No. of No. of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Equity

From To Physical Form Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

Physical
Form

Demat
Form

1 s00 14453 10628 2100706 126968s 17.88 10.81
501 1000 147 1.06 2.76

1001 2000 52 158 75900 236756 0.65 2.01
2001 3000 56 22400 141104 0.19 1.20
3001 4000 2 18 0.0s 0.55
4001 5000 6 21 0.24 0.82
5001 10000 3 27 20300 199524 0.17 1.70
10001 and above 0 0 7039712 0.00 s9.91

Total 14672 20.24 79.76
Grand Total 26011 1 1750000 100.00

Sharehold Pattem as bn 3 1't March 2025

No. ofshares held % ofshares held
Promoters, Directors & Relatives 6044759 51.44
Non Resident Iridividual 30187 0.26
Indian Financial Institutions 0
Nationalised Banks and Mutual Funds 14400 0.12
Other Bodies Co te 425627 3.62
Public s204297 44.29

30727
-l

0.26
0.01

Total I 1750000 100.00
Dematerialisation of shares and Liquidity :

D at ISN No.INE369C01017

0) di Rs/AD erti likeOutstan GD RsAV tSarTan anor Con b Ine strumng versCon o daten andv ents, v
oact nlm ul

,100 Warrants convertible into equity shares on 31.01.2025 which
are due to be converted on or before 31.07.2026.

on 27.03.2025, the company allotted 12,18,100 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each
fully paid up pursuant to conversion of 12,18,100 warrants out of total 37.94,100 warrants
allotted to Non Promoters on preferential allotment basis on 31.1 January, 2025 atan issue price
ofRs. l7l- per share upon receipt ofbalance 75% ofthe subscription money. consequently, the
paid up share capital ofthe Company stands increased from 11,75,00,000 to l2,g6,gi,OOO.'

As on 31'03'202 5, 25,7 6,000 warrants convertible into equity shares are outstanding. on full
conversion the paid up equity share capital of the company shall be increaied from
1 1,75,00,000 to 15,54,41,000.

The Company allotted 37,94

(-) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: NIL

391 125000 324578

9

6400 64090
27900 9594s

40
11339 2378606 9371394

Category

0.00

Any other

t- Clearing member
i - Trusts

(k)



Plant Location: P.O. Kuripara, Dist: Jalpaiguri-735132, West Bengal.

o( ) Address for correspondence: Norben Tea & Exports Limited
15B Hemanta Basu Sarani, 3d Floor,
Kolkata-70O 001.
Telephone No: 2210-0553; F ax: 2210 0541.

(p) List of all credit rating obtained
by the entity along with any
revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all
debt instruments of such entity or
any fixed deposit Programme or
any scheme or proposal of the
listed entity involving
mobilization of funds, whether in
lndia or abroad.

NIL

11. Other Disclosure :

a)( Disclosures i on materially
significant "-' related party
transactions that may have
potential conflict with the
interests of listed entity at large

There were no material significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interests of listed entity at large. The Company made
transactions with its related parties which were material in
terms of Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and for which prior approvals of Audit Committee of Board
of Directors of the Company and Members of the Company
were obtained. All contracts/agreementVtransactions
entered into during the period with the related parties were
carried out at an arm's length basis at fair market value

(b) Details of non-compliance by the
listed entity, penalties, strictures
imposed on the listed entity by
stock exchange(s) or the board or
any statutory authority, on any
matter related to capital markets,
during the last three years

l.The equity shares of the Company are listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited with effect from
June26, 1996.

The equity shares of the Company are also listed on

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. with effect from 25b

November, 1994. However, BSE has suspended in trading
of equity shares of the Company w.e.f.3'd January, 2002.
Further, notice for resumption oftrading in the shares ofthe
Company has been issued by the BSE Ltd on January 05,

2023 wherein BSE has informed that the suspension in
trading of equity shares of the company revoked w.e'f.
January 13,2023.

2.As per Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 ("Listing Regulation"), the Board of Directors of the

top 1000 listed entities (with effect from April 1, 2019) and

the top 2000 listed entities (with effect from April 1,2020)
shall comprise ofnot less than six Directors.

The Company's interpretation was that this is applicable to
all listed entities across NSE, BSE and MSEI, in which
case Company does not fall in the top 2000.

51

(n)



Period June 30 2020
Regulation Regulation 17(l) (c)

ition of BoardCom
Details of Non-
Compliance

23 2020
non-

com liance
Days of For quarter ended June 30, 2020 - 91

d
Fine details For quarter ended June 30, 2020 -

Rs.4 55 000/-

Period S ber 30 2020
Regulation Regulation 23(9)

(LODR)
of SEBI

Regulations,
2015 Iated Transaction

Details of Non-
Compliance

As per NSE the Company has not
complied regulation under 23(9)
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 within 30 days from the
date of Board Meeting
i.e.l0/1112020.

Days of non-
compliance

For quarter ended September 30,
2020 -39 days

Fine details and
waiver thereof

For quarter ended September 30,
2020 - Rs.1,95,000/-. The
Company filed an application to
NSE for waiver of fine.

The NSE vide its Ref. No.
NSE/LIST/SOPAIORBTEAEXP
dated 20n May,202l granted the
waiver.

on-Com S

Non-Com li Details

-Com liance Detai

Period tember 30, 2020
Regulation

As per NSE the Company was not
having minimum six Directors on its
Board from April 01, 2020 to August
23 2020

Days of non-
compliance

For quarter ended September 30,
2020 - 54

Fine details For quarter ended September 30,
2020 -Rs.2,70,0001-

As per NSE the Company was not
having minimum six Directors on its
Board from April 01, 2020 to August

J.

Regulation 17(1) (c)
(Composition of Board)

Details of Non-
Compliance



udication order no. OrderlBSlKH/2124-

5.National Stock Exchange of India Limited (,.NSE,') and
BSE have, vide their notice dated December 13, 2024,
imposed a fine of Rs.5900/- (Rupees Five thousand nine
hundred only) each on the Company for non-compliance of
Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 i.e. one day
delay in submission of related party transaction for the haif
year ended September 30, 2024. The Company has paid the
relevant fine as levied by BSE and NSE within the ielevant
time-line.

4.SEBI vide its adj

(c) Details of establishment of vigil
mechanism, whistle blower
policy, and affirmation that no
personnel has been denied access
to the audit committee

pany has established a Vigil Mechanism / Whistle
Blower Policy. It is aflirmed that no personnel has been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Com

complied with all the applicable
ents of Corporate Governance as

specified under Schedule II ofthe Listing Regulation.

The Company has adopted the following discretionary
(non-mandatory) requirements as stated in Schedule Il-part
E, Clause E of the Listing Regulation: (i) adopting the
financial statement with unmodified audit opinion, (ii) the

The Company has
mandatory requirem

directl to the Audit Committee.internal auditor
Weblinks to:
Policy for determining 'material'
subsidiaries

N.A.

https://www.norben iliarisationprosram
me-Nor f

com/pdf/Famtea.

111. Related Party Transaction Policy
rons. f

-and-httos ft licy-on-rel://www.no com/od
-tranm teriall -related-

lv. Preservation of documents and
Archival Poli

ft on of docu
tits and archi

entea.

s://www.norbentea.c f/cod f-conducth f
vl. Whistle Blower Policy

le-blower- li
I-mechanism-flVieia.com/od://www.norbhttos

rvh df
vtt. Policy on Harassment .norbentea.com/odf/tlo

harras
licy-on-httos:/

vllt. dflcode duct to
ft

J/
late moni

rbentea.
-re

lx. Code of Practices and Procedures
for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information

procedures.pdf
ractices ande of ohttps .norbentea.com/odf/
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25130558 dated June 28,2024 has imposed a penalty ofRs.
1,00,000 @upees one lakh only) for violation of SEBI
Circular No.CIR/CFD/CMD 1l1t4l2}t9 dated October 18,
2019 rcad with Regulation 4(1) (g) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. The Company has paid the relevant fine
as levied by SEBI within the relevant time-line

(d) Details of compliance with
mandatory requirements and
adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements

l.

ll. Familiarisation Programme for
Independent Directors

Code of Conduct

Code of Conduct Regulate,
Monitor and Report Tradins



x. Ethics Policy
Food Safety Policy & Objectives

xll. Risk Assessment in Plantation
and Factory

https://www.norbentea.com/ pdf/risk assessment in ola

Policy for Determination of
Materiality of Events or Information

https ://www.norbentea.com/pdf/policy for determinatio

(0 Disclosure of commodity price
risks and commodity hedging
activities

N.A.

( ) Details of utilization of funds
raised through preferential
allotmentorqualified institutional
placement as specified under
Regulation 32 (7A)

As per Annexure

(h) Certificate from a Company
Secretary in piactice that none of
the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or
disqualified. . from being appointed
or continuing as Directors of
Companies by the Board /
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or
any such statutory authoriiy.

The Company has received a Certificate from Agarwal A &
Associates, Company Secretary in practice that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of Companies by the Board / Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any statutory.

(D

/

Where the Board has not
accepted any recommendation of
any committee of the Board.
Provided that the clause shall
only apply where
recommendation of / submission
by the committee is required for
the approval of the Board of
Directors and shall not apply
where prior approval of the
relevant committee is required
for undertaking any transaction
under these regulations

NIL

0) Total fees for all services paid by
the listed entity and its
Subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the Statutory Auditors
and all entities in the network
firm/ network entity of which the
Statutory Auditor is a part.

The fees for the year 2024-25 for various services of I[/s.
A. O. Mittal & Associates, Chartered Accountant which
includes Statutory Audit, Limited Reviews and
Certification work amounts to Rs.75.000/-.

(k) The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment

Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual

Harassment of Women at Workplace @revention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal, Complaints
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https://www.norbentea.com/pdflethics Dolicy.pdf
xl. httos:/iwww.norbqntea.com/pd fqgd*safety policv and

obiectives.pdf

4]atrOland factorV.pdf
xlll.

n ofmateriality of events or information.pdf

The sexual harassment of women

at workplace (prevention,

prohibition and redressal) Act,
2013



Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered
under this Policy. The Policy is gender neutral. During the
year under review, no complaints with allegations of sexual
harassment were filed.

12. RXLATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015 the Company has formulated a policy on materiality o
with related-party transactions which can be accessed at:

f related-party transactions and on dealings

lqlated-and-material ly-related-partv-tran saction s.pdf

All related-party transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the transaction. Related-
party hansactions of repetitive nature are approved by the Audit Committee on an omnibus basis for
one financial year at, a time. All transactions pursuant to omnibus approval are reviewed by the Audit
Committee on a qugilerly basis.

A confirmation of compliance pertaining to related-party transaction as per SEBI Listing Regulations,
2015, is also reported along with the quafterly compliance report on corporate governance.

As per the Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations the disclosures of related party
taansactions on a consolidated basis have been submitted by the Company for the half year ended 306
September, 2024 and' for the 2nd half and full year ended 3 l"t March, 2025 to the Stock Exchanges and
published the same on the website of the Company.

Further, the Company had obtained prior shareholder approval for material related party transactions.

Details of such transactions as per requirements of INDAS24 are disclosed in Note 43 to the audited
accounts. A statement of these transactions was also placed before the Audit Committee and in the
Board meetings from time to time.

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company followed the guidelines as laid down in the IND-AS, prescribed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants oflndia, for the preparation ofthe financial statements.

14. OBSERVANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSI'ED BY THE INSTITUTE OF
COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

The Institute of Company Secretaries of India has issued secretarial standards on board meetings &
general meetings and also issued draft secretarial standards for payment of dividend, maintenance of
register and records, minutes of meetings, transmission of shares and debentures, passing ofresolution
by circulation, affixing of common seal among others. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
mandated SS-1 and SS-2 with respect to board/committee meetings and, general meetings
respectively. The Company has complied with these standards.

httns .norbentea.com/ndf/policy-on-

b l-r



15.

Thri: r.r no non-compliance of any requirement of corporate Govemance Report of sub-paras asdetailed abwe, thus no explanations need to be given .olr" aoa .*""pt u, -"nltioreJ in-para r 16;

16. DISCL SURI, F THE COMPLIAN CE TH CO RATE GOVERNANCEREOUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17
SUB-REG ULATION OF REGULATI

TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO fl) OF
N 4

The Company has complied with the requirements of aforesaid Regulations.

17. DISCLOSURE WITHRESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT /UNCLAIMEDs SPE EA OUNT

As on 3l't March,20)5, therc are no outstanding shares of the company lying in the demat suspense /unclaimed suspense account.

18. CEO/CFO CERTIF'I CATION

IP 99yp-y I &/y placing a certifrcate to rhe Board from the Managing Director (cEo) and the
!ue{ rinangi-al_officer (cFo) of the company, in accordance with theiprivision, or'tr,. f,.ouiro toRegulation 33(2)(a) of the Listing Regulation. The aforesaid certificaie dulv ,ien"J L; rhe said
qerslns i.n respect of rhe financial yearinaea sr.,March, 202; ;;;;;il;l ;..#;: Board atthe Meeting held on 2Bd May, 2025.

19. D TIO ON
The Board has laid down a CJ
Company pursuant to Clause D

20. CODE OF CONDUCT

CE CO
de of Conduct for all Board Mem
of Schedule V of Listing Regulati

COD OFC UCT
bers and Senior Management of the
on with Stock Exchanges.

All the members of the Board and Senior Management of the company have affirmed compliance
,. with the said Code of Conduct on an annual basis.

The company has framed code of conduct for all the Board Members, Key Managerial personnel
and other Senior Executives ofthe company who have affirmed compliance with th;"s;;; as on 31.tMarch, 2025. Duties of the Independeni Diiectors have suitably u""n inro.po.uiJln iir" 

"oar. 
rr,.code is displayed on the company's website: www.norbentea.com. A declaration signed by theManaging Director & CEO is obtained by the Co.Jany. -In pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India @rohibition of Insider Trading)Regulations 1992 (as amended), the loard his approved the 'code of conduct ror-p.luention or ,

Insider Trading' and entrusted the Audit committee to monitor the compliance of the 
"oi". 

rh" gou.a
at its meeting held on 14th May,]}l5 has approved and adopted t*re spgl (prohibition or InsiderTrading) Regulations, 2015 relating to the code of practices and procedure for rui. aisctosu." orUnpublished Price Sensitive Information and formulated the cod" 

"f 
;;;;;;;f ;; a;;;;.

For NoRBEN ?t?t1$ff #11",.

Date: 28th May, 2025

<q

THEREOF

sd/-
MANOJKUMARDAGA

Managing Director
DIN: 00123386



CK AOMITTAL&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

INDIA

lndependent Auditor's Report

To :he Members of Norben Tea & Exports Lim:ted

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

we have audited the accompanying standalone Financial statemenls of Norben Tea & Exports Lim;ted

{the 
,,cornpany,,), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the statement of Profit

and Loss (including other comprohens:ve lncome), the statement of cash Flows and the statement of

Charges in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infor:nation.

ln oxr opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatiol'ls Siven to us, thp

aforesaid Stardaione Financialstatements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013

(tie ,,Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian

Accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("lnd AS") and other accountinS

principles generally accepted in lndia, ofthe state of affairs ofthe company as at March 312025,and

its profit, total comprehenslve income, its cash flows and lhe changes in equity for the year ended o:'t

that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ofthe Standalone Financaalstatements in accordance with tle Standards on

Auditi:rg ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) ofthe Act. Our responsibillties underthose Standards

are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the CompaJry in accordance wlth the Corle

r:f Ethics issued by the l.stitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia {"lCAl") together with ihe ethical

requirements thal are relevant to our audit of the Standalone tinancial Statements under the

provisaons of the Act and the Rulos made thereunder, and we have fulfiiled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requi:ements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that

the a udit evidence obtained by us ls sufficient and appropr;ale to provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the Standalone Financlal Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were of most significance in

our audit of the Standalone Financia I Statemerts of the current period. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our repoat

:..).?;

\:

Head Office (Jaipur): A - 459, First Floor, Adarsh Path, Vidyut Nagar, Ajmer Road, f,aipur, Raj,sthan 302021

Our Branches: Ahemedabad, Chennai, Gurugram, Jammu, Udaipur, Nagpur, Raipur, Sikar, Vadodara, Ranchi

(S www.aomittal.com ll\ (014l)6768374 AO ! office@aomittal.com

Todi Mansion, 1l th Floor, R No. I I 15, P I5, lndia Exchange Place Kolkata-7ooo73 ' Mob. 8l OO0 43003



:rformation Othe. than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon ("Other

lnformation")

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information .The other information

comprises the information included in the Report of the Board of Directors including Annexures

thereto, Management Dlscussion and Analysis Report and Corporate Governance Report, but does

not include the Corsolidated Financ:al Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responslbility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistont

with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit

or otherwise appears to be mater:ally misstated.

lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a mater:al misstatement of this

other information, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to repoft in this regard.

Responsibil:t:es of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of D:rectors is responslble for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the prepa ration of these Sta ndalone fina ncial Statements that give a true and fa ir view

ofthe financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash f:ows and

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in

lndia, including lnd AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responslbility also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventinB and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriat€ accounting policies; making judgments ard

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementat:on and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, lhat were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeneis of the accounting records, releva nt to the prepa ration and presentation of the financia I

statements lhat give a true and fair v:ew and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

lr preparing the Standalone F:nancia: Slatements, Management and 3oard of D:rectors are

responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as

applicable, matters related to going concern and using lhe going concern basis of accounting unless

the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors is a lso responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

6L !



Auditorrs Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Flnancial Stalements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material m:sstatement resulting from fraud is higher than fo:" one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve,tollusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or lhe override of

interndlcontrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)ii) of the Act, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinior on whether the Company has adequate internal financial

conlrols with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating eftectiveness

of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis o{ accounting a nd,

based on the aud;t evidence obtained, whether a maleria: uncertainty exisls reiated to events or

condltions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abil:ty ao continue as a going concern. lf

we conclude that a material uncertainty exlsts, we are required to draw attert:on in our auditor's

report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditor's report" However, future evenls or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern-

Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and contefit of the Standalore F:nancial S:atemenis,

including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone t:nancial Statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone tinancial Statements that ind ivid ua lly

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user

of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influ
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enced. We conside
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tive materia lity and

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Slandalone Financial

Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whelher due to fraud or error, and to

issue an audito.'s .eport that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a malerial

misstatement wheit il exists. Mlsstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the ag6re8ate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basls of these Standalone F:nancial Statements. As part of an aud:t i,]

accordance w;th SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain prolessional skepticism

throughout the audit" We also:



quatitativo factors in (i) pla nning the scope of our audit work a nd :n evaluatinS the results of our work;

ar:d {ii) to evaluate the effect of any idertified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

we communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audil findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internalfinancial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we lave complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thou8ht to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged wilh Sovernance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in tho audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about ahe matter or when, in ext;emely rare

circumstances. We determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the

adverse consequentes of doing so would reasonably be expected to oulweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Report on'Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Se ction 143(3) of the Act, based on our a udil we repod that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the informalion and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary Jor the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper bool<s of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far

as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Oaier Comprehensive lncome, the

statement of cash Flows and statement of changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in

agreement with the relevant bool(s of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified

under Section 133 of the Act.

f) With respect to ahe adequacy of the internal financial controls with

Financialstatements ofthe Company and the operating effectiveness of

separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodi,ied

and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial co

Standalone Financial Statements. 
....,,, 

,

/-7 I(fr I

reference ao StandaloBe

such controls, refer to our

opinion on the adeq uacy

rlrols with reference to

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken

on record bythe Board of D:rectors, none ofthe directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.



h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our oplnion and to the best

of our information and according to the explanations giver to us:

The Cornpany does not have any pending litigations which would impact ils finarc:al
position.

The Compa ny did not have a ny long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which

there were any material foreseeable losses.

l There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the :nvestor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the b€st of it's knowledge and belief, no

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share

premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or l.t a,]y oaher

person(s) or ent:ty{ies), including foreign entities {"lntermed ia ries"), with :he
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

directly or indirectly lend or ;nvest in other persors or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 8eneficiaries") or provide any

guarantee, secur::y or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best o, it's krowledge and belief, no

funds have been received 5y the Company from any person(s) or ent:ty(:es), including

foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirecaly, le.d or invest in other persons

or entlties identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party

("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the Iike on behalf oi the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasor.:able and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
be::eve that the representations under sub-clause (:) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the fina
Hence, compliance in accordance with Section 123 of the Companies
a pplica ble.

6/"+

rcialyear.

Act, 2013 is not

tt
I

g) With respect to the othe. matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the

requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our

in,ormation and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration pald by the Company

to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provislons of section L97 of the Act.



V:. Sased on our examinatior: which included test checks, the Company has used two differenl

accounting software, one for maintaaning its books of account of Head Office and another

for maintain:ng its books of account of Tea Gard.n.

The accounting software used for mainlaining its books of account at Head office level,

have a feature of recording audit tra:: (edit lo8) facilily and the same has operated

throughout the year for all relevant transact:ons recorded in the software. Further, for tare

periods where ard:t trail (edit log) facilily was enabled and operated throughout the year

for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit

trail feature being tampered with.

Whereas, the accounting software used by the Company for maintaining its books of

account at Tea Garden doesn't have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility

2. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("ahe Order") issued by the Central

Government ir terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a stat€ment on the

mattors specified in'paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe Order.

For A O Mittal & Associates

Cha rtered Accounta nts

(Firm's Registration No. 014640C)

Ii
!i\ a \ G:

/*tr r- lt^I 
Rahul Kumar Shah

(Pa rt ne r)

(Membership No. 307027)
E0 |

Place: Kolkata

Date: May 28, 2025

UDIN: ztrohzl g\nA2 e 7\'t 2-
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Annexure "A" to the lndependent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of

our report of even date)

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under

Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the ComPanies Act, 2013 (the "Act")

We have audited the internal financialcontrols with reference to Standalone FinancialStatements of

Norben Tea Exports Llmited (the "Company") as at March 3L, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of

the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date'

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's mandgement and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining

internal flnancial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on the internal

control with referdnce to Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the Company
I

considering the essdntial components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial ibntrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants

of lndia. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operatlng effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient

conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies

Act,2013.

Audito/s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference

to Standalone Financial Statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with the cuidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

(the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and the Standards on

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls

with reference to Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence a bout the adequacy ofthe internal

i financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial St?tenents and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial

Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of materia I misstatement of

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error
ASSo/,
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone

Financial Statements.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone F:nancial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone FinancialStatements ls a process

designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial

Statements includes those policies and proced ures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactlons and dispositions ofthe assets ofthe

company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and

that receipts and eipenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention ortimeiy detection ofunauthorised acquisition, use, ordisposition ofthe company's assets

that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitaiions of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to

Statemenas

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone

Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial

Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference

to Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of cha nges in conditions, or that

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to

Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone

Fina ncial State ments were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal

financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statements established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants

of lndia.

For A O Mittal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Flrm's Registration No. 014640C)

Standalone Financial

ALtJ l* ,w' Rahul Kumar Shah

(Pa rtner)
(Membership No. 307027)

&A)
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K A1A

Place: Kolkata

Date: May 28, 2025

UDIN: Zt 30 -+--z7 {3,nUH zP "\aL
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Annexure "B" to the lndependent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

section of our rePort of even date)

ln terms ofthe information and explanations sought by us and given bythe Company and the

books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best

of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

l. a) A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-

progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The company does not have any intangible asset therefore, the provision of clause

(iXaXB) of paragraph 3 ofthe said order is not applicable to the company'

b) The Compdny has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment and

capital work-in-progress to cover all the items once every three years which, in our

opinion, ls'reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its

assets.'Pursuant to the program, property, plant and equipment were due for

verification during the year and were physically verified by the Management during

the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material

.discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined

by us, we report that the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land

and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the

Balance Sheet date.

d) The company has not revalued any of its property, plant and intangible assets durinS

the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the

Company as at March 3L,2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

lt a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at

reasonable intervals. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations

given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is

appropriate having regard to the size ofthe Company and the nature of its operations. No

discrepancies of LOo/o or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed

on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account.

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in

rupees, in aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis

excesS
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five crore
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vt.

assets only. Thus, reporting under Clause (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not

applicable to the company.

The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or Sranted

any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,

Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (iii) (a)

to (f) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not

commented upon.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies

Act,2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities

provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.

Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best ofbur knowledge and belief, the Central Government of lndia has not specified

the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (L) of Section 148 of the Act. Thus,

reporting under Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not applicable to the

company.

Vll. ln respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund,

Employees'State lnsurance, lncome-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty

of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the

Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities in all

cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax,

Provident Fund, Employees'State lnsurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty

of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, tess and other material statutory dues in

arrears as at March 3L,2025 fot a period of more than six months from the date they

became payable, except following:

S1. No Particulars Amount
Hundreds)

(Rupees 1n

1 Contribution to Provident Fund 73242.76

2 P Tax ) ))q )6

b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been

deposited as on March 31,2025 on account ofdisputes are given below:
,/
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Name of
the statute

Nature of
dues

Amount
(Rupees in

Hundreds)

Amount
paid

under

dispute

(Rupees in

Hundreds)

Period to
which the
amount
relates

(Financial

Year)

Forum where
dispute is

pending

lncome Tax lncome Tax 1995-1996 DCIT, Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 8,456.70 L,693.44 20LO-2017

lncome Tax lncome Tax 62,557.70 2072-2073 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 1,181.50 2073-2014 Appellate
Tribunal,

Kolkata

lncome Tax LL,7t4.64 1,210.00 2076-20L7 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax 2018-20t9 crr(A),
National

Faceless

Department,
New Delhi

vilt. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were

surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,

1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings,

or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or government or any government authority.

(l_

tx.

-7o

24,650.OO

CIT(A), Kolkata

9,393.66

5,809.70

lncome Tax

lncome Tax 7639.87
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c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized

term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ixXc) of
the Order is not applicable.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised

on short-term basis have not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the

Company.

e) On an overall examination ofthe financial statements ofthe Company, the Company

has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence reportin8 on clause (ix) (e) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

f) On an overall examination ofthe financial statements ofthe Company, the Company

has no subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence reporting on clause (ix) (f) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable

a) The Comp'any has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause

3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the

Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

c) According to the information and explanations given by management of the Company
we have not come across any whistle - blower complaints during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) ofthe Order
is not applicable.

lnouropinion,theCompanyisincompliancewithSectionLTTandlSSoftheCompanies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as iequired
by the applicable accounting standards.

I7L 7

xt.

XII.

xil.

b) The Company has made preferential allotment of shares during the year. For such

allotment of shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42 and

62 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been applied by the Company

during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised, other than temporary

deployment pending application.



XIV

XV

XVI

XVII.

XIX.

a) ln our opinion the Com pa ny has an adeq uate internal auditsystem commensurate with

the size and the nature of its business.

b) We have considered the reports of lnternal Auditor for the period under audit.

ln our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of
section 192 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination

of the records of the Company, the Company is not required to be registered under

section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia as per the Reserve Bank of lnd ia Act, 1934 and

accordingly,, the provisions of Clause (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable

to the Compaiy and hence not commented upon,
I

b) According,to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination

ofthe records of the Company, the Company is not conducting any non-banking financial

or housing financial activities. Therefore certificate of registration is not required to be

obtained from the Reserue Bank of lndia.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit

but'had incurred a cash loss of Rs. 1,10,320.64 (Rs. ln Hundreds)during the immediately
preceding financial year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of
the records of the Company, there has been resignation of the statutory auditor during

the year and the outgoing auditor has not raised any issues, objections or concerns which

were required to be considered by the statutory auditor.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial

assets and payment of financial Iiabilitles, other information accompanying the financial

statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and

based on our examination ofthe evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come

to our attention, which causes us to believe that any. material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year

from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on'the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee'noi any assurance

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination
of the records of the Company, the Company is not a Core lnvestment Company

(ClC).Therefore Clause (xvi) (c) & (d) of paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company.

xvlil.
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XXI.

that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination

of the records of the company, the company is not liable to undertake activities under

corporate social responsibility as per the provisions of section 135 of the companies Act

2013. Hence, comment on clause (xxXa) and 3 clause (xxXb) of Paragraph 3 of the said

Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of

the records of ihe Company, the Company is not liable to prepare consolidated financial

statements. Therefore, comment on clause (xxi) of Paragraph 3 of the said Order is not

applicable to the company.

For A O Mittal & Associates

Cha rtered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 014640C)

o
r* ':

'L.-,
c

CL

l-t" v^ dLt' Rahul Kumar Shah

(Pa rtner)
(Membership No. 307027)Place: Kolkata

Date: May 28, 2025

UDIN: 'X? d.r"z.rg$V 142 P.L.\LL-
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. 101132w81990PtC048991

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025

Note As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Amount (Rs, ln Hundreds Amount Rs. ln Hundreds

ASSETS

{1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Property, Plant and EquiPment

(b) FinancialAssets
(i)Trade Receivables

(ii) Other Financial Assets

(c) N on-cu rrent Tax Asset {Net)
(d) Deferred tax assets (net)

23,62,594,24 22,4a,550.93

3,107.5s
35,250.65

56,067.75
6L,434.37 1,55,860.25

3,107.55

3a,o73.79
51,530.68

69,854.10 1,52,565.53

(2} CURRENTASSETS

(a)lnventories
(b) Blologicat Assets other than bearer plants

(c) FinancialAssets
(i)lnvestments
(ii)Trade Receivables
(lii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(iv) Bank Balance other than (ii above
(v) Loans & Advances

(vi) Other Financial Assets

(d) Other Current Assets

7,29,448.62

5,474,44

42,717.5)

5,478.44

4.25

74,027.33

4!,677.08
7,t56.L7
1,250.00

83,362.30 7,47,477,07

6,075.94

4,25

1.2,350.43

24,242.36
1,156.7L

!,25O.O0

38,084.19 83,087.34

L,4L4.46

.//
TotalAssets 28,06,932.s6 83 27

EQUITYAND TIABII-]II5

(1) EOUITY

(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) lnstruments Entirely equity in nature
(c)other Equity

(2} LIABILITIES

(a) NON.CURRENT LIASILITIES

77

18

19

12,96,810.00

L,09,480.02

2,25,A04.a8 L6,32,094.2O

11,75,000.00

7,34,945.84 73,O9 ,945.44

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)Borrowings

(b) Provisions

20

2t
s,63,582.95 s,63,s82.95

46,538.78

6,63,806.47 6,63,406.47

68,228.98

(b) cu RRENT LIABILITIES
,(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii)Trade Pavables

(iii) other Financial Liabilities

22

23

24

25

26

3,7O,473.29

37,220.61

21,002.26 4,24,696.76

3,79,509.86

40,287.97

37,330.84 4,57,728.67

24,775.70

s9,983.21

(b) Employee's Benefits obliBations
(c) other Liabilities

23,748.69

7,L2,277,79

Total Equity and Liabilities ___-199!,rl?16 25 ,83,208.27

corporate lnformation

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements &
Presentation
signifi cant AccountinB Policies

SigniflcantJudgements & Use of Estimates

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of
the Financial statements

L
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4
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ftahul Kumarshah

Paftner

Membership No. 307027
Place : Kolkata

Date : The 28th day of May,
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MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg, Director
(D1Nr00123386I
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NIRAI TIWARI

Company Secretary

Membership No. A70479
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MUSKAN BHIMRA,KA

Chief Financial Offlcer
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS I-IMITED

CIN No. 101132WB1990P1C048991

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & tO55 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Forthe year ended
31st March, 2025

For the year ended

Note No 31st Ma 2024

INCOME

(l) Revenue from operations
(ll)Other lncome

z7

28

amount (Rs, ln Hundreds)

7,65,216.7'
2,555.36

Amount (Rs. ln Hundreds)

6,51,525.23

3,414,34

(lll) Tolal lncome (l + ll) 7,67 77t-47 6,60,939.57

(rv)EXPENSES

{a) changes in lnventories of Finished Goods

(b) Employee Benefi ts Expense

(c) Einance Costs

(d) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

(e)other Expenses

29

30

31

32

33

(41,1143.63)

4,7A,775,66

L,L3,177,12

60,290.28

2,34,296.74

37,328.43

4,23,493.39

1,07,334.75

58,066.74

2,03,t04.24

Total Expenses (lv) 7,85,096.41 8,29,326.94

(v) Profit/(Loss) before Taxes (lll - lv)

(Vl) Tax Expense:

(a)CurrentTax

(b) N4at Credit
(c) lncome Tax For Earlier Years

(d) Deferred Tax

(77,324.94]. (1,68,387.38)

34

350,76 7,689.4r

(Vll) Profit/(toss) for the year (v - vD
(vlll) Other Comprehensive lncome
i. ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

ii. lncome tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive lncome for the Year (Net ofTax) (Vlll)

(77,67!@ t,70,o16.
35

31,336.07
(8,069.04)

(6,609.73)

L,702.0L

23,267.03 \4,901 .72)

(lx) Total comprehensive lncome for the year (Vll +vlll) 5,591.34 lL,7 4 ,984.s1.)

(x) Earnings Per Share

Nominal Value of shares (Rs.10)

Number of Ordinary Shares outstandinB during the year

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding

during the year

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings PerShare

1,29,68,100 1.,17,50,000

t,L1,66,686
(0.15)

(0.14)

1,17,50,000
(1.4s)

(1.4s)

Corporate lnformation
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements & Presentation

Significa nt Accounting Policies

SignificantJudgements & Use of Estimates
The accompanylng Notes are ah lntegralpart ofthe Flnancial

Statements
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z
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As per our Report annexed of even date
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For and on beha ofthe Board

&w
ASHOK VARDHAN BAGREE

lndependent Director
(DlN:00421623)

ForAO MITTAL&ASSOCIATES

Chortered Accountonts

Firm Registration No.014 0C
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Rahul Kumar shah

Partner

Membership No.307027
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NIRAI TIWARI

Company Secretary

Membership No. A70479
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ti(ATAPlace: Kolkata

Date :The 28th d

uDlN I x Jo:\-o
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MUSKAN BHIMRA'KA

Chief Financial Officer
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MANOI (UMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
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CASH FLOWSTATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2025
Amount (Rs.ln Hundred,

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

(1,68,387.38)

58,066.74

340.04

7,419.66

1,01,334-15

(85.19)

(2,178.38)

1,63,666.10 2,769.64

(1,676.90)

147,337.L01

142,455.571
(4,661.48)

(3,067.30)

(366.41)

52,288.58

t16,328.58)

14,381_21

39,323.11

7,446.71

514.99

5,836-46

2,131_38

11,513.81

15,562.92

Cash generated from operations
DirectTax (paid)/ Refund (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets including Capital wlP (net of s!bsidy)
Proceedsfrom sale of Assets

Proceedsfrom Sale of lnvestments

Purchase of lnvestments
Profitfrom Sale of lnvestments
lnterest Recelved

Dividend Received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings
Proceeds/(Repayment) of lssue of Shares & Warrants
Proceeos/(Repaynenr) oI Sho.l rerm Borrowings
Proceeds/Repayment) Long Te rrn borowing fror. Bank & Financial lnstitution
Proceeds/(Repayment) of l.J nsecured Loans

lnterest & Finance Charges

Net Cash used in Fina ncing Activlties
Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents atthe end ofthe year
Earmark Balances with Bank

Cash & Bank aalances at the end ofthe year

L,OO,061,34

(4,s37.06)
98,946-22
(s,18s.86)

(A) 95,524.24 93,760.36

B.

11,74,337 ,60l 11,23,52O.64)

500.00

2,122.43

85.19

2,17438

(B) 11,72,2L5.171 11,18,411.34)

c.

3,16,557.O2
(9,036.s7)

(8,692.14)

{91,s31.38)
1L,73,L71 .321

54,426.74

(1s2.43)

44331.37

\1,O7,334.15)

{c) 94,1L9.61 30,870.94

L7,428.72

24,242.X6

6,153.96

18,088.40

4L,671.O8

7,156.11.

24,242.36

7,156.11

44,427.19 31394.47

Note : 1. Figures shown 1n bracket shows cash outflow,

2, Previous year's Figures have been regroLrped/rearranged wherever necessary

This is the Cash FlowStatement ref€rred to In our report of even date.

For A O MlTTAl, & ASSoCIATES

Chaftered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 014640C

4W
ASHOl( VAROHAN BAGREEMANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
(DlN:00123386)

lndependent Director
(DlN:00421623)

\Glko,-' E-\"iY^'Lo{k^

For and on behalfolthe Board

fr.,r, t- - D "\

I
kll v )t-
Rahul Kumar Shah

Partner

Membership No.307027

1 /'1

or'*;i1;
CompanySecretary

Membership No. 470479Place: Kolkata

Date :rhe 28th dayof May, 2025
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LTD

CIN No. 101132w81990P1-CM8991

Forthe Forthe

Yeat ended Yearended
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Net Profit/(Loss) after ta x

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustmentslor:
Depreciation & Amortisatlon Expenses

(Ga:n)/Loss on Disposa of Assets

contribution to Gratuity Fund

Mat Credit Entitlement

Finance Cost

Other Non'Cash ltems
(cain)/Loss on Disposal of lnvestments

lnterest Recelved

Dividend

Operating Proflt before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

( ncrease)/Decrease ln Trade Receivable

(lncrease)/Decrease ln lnventories
(lncreage)/Dec.ease ln Other Finacial Assets
(lncreage)/Dec'ease ln Otner Cu'rent assets

ncrease/(Decrease) ln Trade Payable

ncrease/(Decrease) ln Employee Beneflt Ob igations
Lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Current Liabllities
lncrease/(Decrease) ln Other Financ al Liabi ities

lrr,rro,"ol

60,290.28

6,538.32

L,13,177.12

3,107.55

12,122.4?l

MUSKAN BHIMRAJKA

Chief Financial Officer
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN: t01132W81990P1C048991

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TH E YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH ,2025

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Norben Tea & Exports Limited ("the Company'') is an entity incorporated in lndia

having CIN No. 101132W81990P1C048991. The registered address of the company is

158, Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata - 700 001. Udyam registration number under

Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) is UDYAM-WB-10-

0008831. The principal business of the company is growing and manufacturing of

tea. As per Section 148 of the Companies. Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost

records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the company is not required to maintain cost

records.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANC IAL STATEMENTS AND PRESENTATION

The finincial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with

the lndi€n Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as per the Companies (lndian Accounting

Standards) Rules,.2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

("the Act") and other relevant provisions of the Act.

'Company's financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees, which is also its

functional currency.

The standalone lnd AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost

basis except the following items:

a) Financial Assets - Current lnvestments in Shares - Valued at book value

instead of market price.

b) Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities - Valued at fair value on Balance Sheet

approach.

c) Current lnvestments are carried in the books at purchase value.

3. StGNtFt NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Measurement of Fair Values

The company has financial assets: a) lnvestment in Quoted Shares, b) Loans &

Advances, c) Trade Receivables - at fair value, Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

at fair value. lmpact of fair value changes, if any as on the date .of transition, is

recognised in the opening reserves and changes thereafter are recognised in the

Statement of Profit & Loss during the period.

3.2. Cash Flow Statement and Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash Flow Statements are reported using indirect method, where profit before

extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash

nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing f the Company

are segregated based on available information.
o tc79 A



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED

CIN: 10u32W81990PtC048991

CashcomprisescashonhandanddemanddepositsWithbanks.Cashequivalents
areshort.termbalances,highlyliquidinvestmentsthatarereadilyconvertibleinto
known amounts of cish and which are subject to insignificant risk or changes in

value.

3,3. Borrowings

Borrowing Cost consists of interest and other costs incurred in connect ion with

the borrowing of funds.

The borrowings from bank, body corporates have been utilised for the purpose

for which they have been availed i,e creation of fixed assets/net working capital

means. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or

production of qualifying assets are capitalised as the cost of the respective assets'

Other bo,rrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year

in which they are incurred

3.4. Pro rtv. Plant & Equipment and DeDreciati on

Property, Plant and Equipment, i.e. Tangible Fixed Assets are sta

allowable net recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates le

3.5. lm airment of A

The carrying amount of the property, plant & equipment, i'e

Assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. lf any indication of

ted at cost less

ss accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price'

overheads directly. attributable to bringing the assets to working condition for its

intended use'

Depreciation on such tangible assets have been provided on straight line method

as per the useful life estimated by the management' The management estimates

the useful lives of the fixed assets as follows:

*For this class of assets, based on interna I assessment and independent technical

evaluation carried out by external valuers, the management believes that the

useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management

expects to use these assets.

Hence the useful lives for the assets are different from the useful lives as

prescribed under Part C of the schedule of the Companies Act, 201 ld and

Leasehold land are not depreciated.

?I
nt

DESCRIPTIO N OF ASSETSSERIAI

NUMBER
Non - Facto Building s & BridgesL

30Machinery*, Electric lnstallations and

Buildin s

2

20Furniture & Fittings*, Laboratory & Ot

ment* &Tubewell

her

Equip
15Motor Vehicles4
6Computer*5

Office E ut ments
70Bearer Plants+

exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is

3o

USEFUL LIFE (ln Years)

60

F actory
3.

6. 5

6.



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED

CIN : 101132W81990P1C048991

recognised. An impairment loss is charged to the Depreciation Schedule and

Statement of Profit & Loss in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired.

3.6. Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities and Provision for Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities valued on Balance Sheet approach on availability of

future taxable profit against which tax losses and tax benefit carried forward can

be used. Provision for deferred tax recognised on timing differences between the

taxable income and the accounting income that oriSinate in one period and are

capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods enacted as at the reporting

date.

3.1. lnventories
Items of inventories are measured as per "Valuation of lnventories" guidelines

issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia and lnstitute of Cost

Accountants of lndia. The details are as follows:

a) StocJ< of Raw Materials, Stock of Spares & consumables are valued at Cost on

FIFO (First in First Out) basis (excluding the amount of Cenvat/lTC of
Excise/Custom/Service Tax/GST/State Tax Allowable).

'b) Stock of Finished Goods are valued at lower of Cost (excluding the amount of
GST/ credit allowable) or net realizable value.

c) There is no deviation in method of valuation of stock as prescribed under

section 142A of the lncome Tax Act, 1961. The financial statements are

presented as per Accounting Standards under IND AS.

3.8. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Assets and Liabilities are valued at fair market value. The details are

as below:
1. lnvestments are valued at book value. Unrealised Loss and their deferred

tax assets/liabilities are not provided in the Statement of Profit & Loss as

per lnd AS method of presentation as the management is of the opinion

that the unrealised loss is not permanent in nature and that the
investment is strategic in nature.

2. Trade Payables and Trade Receivables are valued at fair market value.

3.9. Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event. lt is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions

(excluding retirement benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are

determined based on best estimates required to settle the obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted

to reflect the current best estimates.

a{

\ I



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN: t01132W81990PtC048991

3.10, RevenueRecognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards

of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery ofthe consideration is

probable, the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing

effective control or managerial involvement with the goods, and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from operations is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable, taking into account defined terms of payment and

excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Other lncome & Expenditure

a) lnvestment lncome on actual transaction are recognized on actual basis.

b) lnterest lncome are recognized on accrual basis.

c) Other Expenses (other than Borrowing Cost and Employee benefit expenses,

whiih are shown separately) are recognized on accrual basis.

3.11. Financ'e Cost

Finance Cost includes interest, amortization and other ancillary cost incurred in

regard to borrowings. All borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit

& Loss for the period for which they are incurred.

3.12. Emplovee Benefit Cost

Short Term Emplovee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in

exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense

during the period when the employees render the services

Lons Term Em OVee Ben efits

The Company's contribution to provident fund are considered as defined

contribution plans and the charges as an expense as they fall due based on the

amount of contribution required to be made. The Company makes regular

contribution to Recognised Provident Fund which are fully funded and

administered by the Central Government.

3.13. GST lnput Credit:
Goods and Services Tax payment elements on purchase/reverse charge/services

received, whichever applied, covered and allowable as IGST/SGST/CGST credit are

accounted for in the books in the period in which the underlying service is

received and accounted.

A9

3.14. Taxes on lncome

The provision for current income tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable

income for the year as determined in accordance with the current provisions of
lncome Tax Act, 1961. Provision for deferred tax assets/liabilities is charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss, measured on differences of Valugtlppo2f Deferred

Tax Assets/Liabilities from one Balance Sheet date to the next .BelanCd5heet date.



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN: t01132W81990P1C048991

3.15. Earnines Per Share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(Loss) after

Tax including Other Comprehensive lncome, i.e. Total Comprehensive lncome, by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the Net Profit/(Loss) after tax

including other comprehensive income , i.e. Total Comprehensive lncome as

adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to

dilutive potential equity shares, by weighted average number of equity shares

considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average

number pf equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

3.16. SegmentReporting
The company has only one primary business segment, i.e. manufacturing of tea.

Operatirlg Cvcle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time

betweeh acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the

Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

ii
g-

g3

4. USE OF ESTIMATESANDJUDGMENTS

ln preparation of these Standalone lnd AS Financial Statements, the management

has made judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and

expenses. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing

basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
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Non Current Current

5 TSADE RECEIVABLES

Total Trade Recelvables

Break Up of Securlty Details
Unsecured, considered good

Note No,
3lstMarch 2025 3lst March 2024 31st March 2025 31stMarch 2024

Amount(Rs. ln Hundreds) Amount (Rs. ln Hundreds)

5,1& 5.2 3,107.55 3,107.55 12,3s0.43

3,107.55 3,107.55 14,027.33 12,350.43

3,107.55 3,107.5s 14,021.33 12,350.43

3,107.55 3,107.55 14,021.33 12,350.43

3,107.55 3,107.55 !4,027.33 12,350.43Iotal Trade Receivables

5.1

5,2
Trade receivabl€s are non-interest bearing,

No trade or other receivables are duefrom directors or other officers ofthe company elther severally orjointly with any other person. No. any trade or other
receivable are due from firms or private com pa nies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a mem ber.

6.3 The is ofthe Trade Receivable

7 LOANS & ADVANCES

Amount(Rs. ln Hundreds) Amount(Rs. ln Hundreds)

i Loans & Adva nces to othe6
7,L

Unsecured, considered good 1,250.00 1,250.00

TotalLoans & Advances 1,250.00 1,250,00

7.L No Loans are due from directors or other orficers of the company either severaLly or jointly with any other person. Nor any loan are due from firms or prtvate
companies respectively in which any directoris a patner, a dlrector ora member.

8 OTHERSFINANCIALASSETS Non Cullent Current

Note No.
31st I'Iarch 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 3lst March 2025 3lstMarch 2024
Amount(Rs. ln Hundreds) Amount (Rs. ln Hundreds)

Securlty Deposits

Unsecured, consldered good

Security Deposits

Other non-.unent investments
lnterest Receivable on Loan and Fixed Oeposits

1,468.18 1,,29O.72

10,000.00

5,782.41

18,000.00

10,000.00

5,182.41

21,000.00

25,000.00

11,000.00

3.519.26

15,000.00

452.75

3,000.00

74,742.94

25,100.06

79,631.44

35,250.55 38,073.19

F

Outstandingas at 31st March,2025 (31st March,2024)frorn the due date

Less than 6 2 - 3 Years

(i) U ndisputed rrade receivables"considered good 13,956.84 74.49

(12,350.43) (-) (-) o (-)

U T d(i 3,107.55

o (-) (-) (-) (3,107.ss)

{iv) oisputed Trade receivables-considered Sood

(-) (-) (-) (, (-)

{iv) Disputed rrade r€ceivables'considered

{-) o (-) (-) (-)

85

tlu

83,362.30 38,084.19

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. 101132W81990P1C048991

Notesto Financia I Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2025

6.4 There are no Unbilled dues which are r€quired to be disclosed separately

74,427.33

OtherLoansand Advances

Unsecured Loan to BodyCorporate (considered Sood)
Advance For capitalGoods (considered good)

Advances to others (consider€d rood)
Advance to Employees {considered tood)
Defered Revenue Expenditure



NORBENTEA& EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. t01132WB1990P1C048991

Notes to Financia I State me nts as on and for the yearended 31st March,2025
9 NON CUiBENTfAX ASSETS INET)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs.ln Hundreds) (Rs.ln Hundreds)

91,965.43

142,734.68)
6,237.04

87,42a.36

/t42,134-58)

6,237.OO

10 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS {NET)

TOTAI CURRENT INVESTMENTS

14 CASBANDCASHEQUVALENTs

Def erred Tax Liabilltles
Arisingon account of:
Property, Plant & Equipment

Less: Def€rred Tax Assets

Arlslng on account of:
Section43B and other ltems
BrouSht Forward Unabsorbed,Losses

(Rs, h Hundreds) (Rs.ln Hundreds)

7,32,444.47 1,32,529.77

\32,440.4t 1,32,529,71,

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

5,321-80

1,88,992.98

13,390.84

1,88,992.98

1,94,314.74 2,02343.42

51,434,3! 69,854,10

(Bs. h Hundreds) (Rs, ln Hundreds)

10.1

Defered Tax Assets {Net)

11 INVENTORIES

(tu v.lued and certified bythe Manasement)

Stores and Spares etc.

12 BIOLOGICAI. ASSETS OTHER THAN BEAiER PLANTS

FairValue of Biological Assets Otherthan Bearer Plants lUnharvested Tea Leaver)

12.1 Unharvested tea leaves on bushes as on 3lst March 2025 was 13537 kgs (31.03.2024- 13,527 kgt

; 13 CURRENTINVESTMENTS Asat3lstMarch 2025

anty (Rs, ln Hund reds)

10.1 The recognition of defered tix asset on unabsorbed depreclation/bLrsjness lorses has been restricted to the extent ofdeferred tax liabiiity on account oftiming
difference in respect of depreciation, the reversal ofwhich is vinually certian.

31stMarch 2025 31st March 2024

92,096.00

37,352.62

50,652.37

31,459.15

1,29,448.62 82,1\1,52

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

12.1

(Rs.ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds)
5,478.44 5,474.44

5,474.44 s,478,44

As at 31st March 2024

anty (Rs.In Hundreds)

10 100 4.25 4.25

4.25 4.25

aSgretate Eookvalue of the Quoted lnvestment
AggreSate MarketValue of the Quoted lnvestment

4.25

5.60

4.25

3.34

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(P,s. h Hundreds) (Rs. ln Bundreds)

25,221.47 278.4A
- 5.50

16,449.27 24,017.46

Balances Wlth Banks I

ln Curent Account

Cash ln Hand

aANK aALANCES (OTHERTHAN NOTE:14)

Fixed Deposit with Bank

41,671.08 24,242.36
15

1,!56.11

1,156.11

15.1 Alltheaboveffxed deposlts has been lientoState Bank oftndia as cottaterat security agajnst I ent on demand and Bank Guarantee.

7,156.11

l-
2
u-

.l

g6 'L

7,156.11

Less: Provigion for Taxation

Mat Credit Entitlement

55,067,75 51,530,58

13.1 INVESTMENTAT FAIRVAI.UE fHROUGH PROFIT

oR LOSS

lnvestments in Quoted Shares
Bansisons Tea lndustries Limited 100

I
t



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS TIMITED

CIN No. 101132WB1990P1C048991

Notes to financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2025

16 OTHER CURRENIASSETS

3lstMarch 2025

As at
31st March 2024

{Rs. rn Hundreds) (Rr.ln tiundreds)
Advances oth€rthan Capital Advances

Balance with Gov,t Authorities
Unclaimed GST lnputs

Total other Assets

4,292.22

947.65

790.50

45.57

1,368.89

45.57

5.075.94 1,414.46

Note No.
as at 31st March 2025

No. ofshares {8s. ln Hundreds)
as at 31st March 2024

No. ofshares (Rs.ln Hundreds)

17.l Authorised ShareCrpltal
Equity Shar€ Capitalof Rs 1o/'each

17.2 Issued Share Capital

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/' each

1,60,00,000 16,00,000.00 1,20,00,000 12,00,000.00

1,50,00,000 15,00,000,00 t,2o,oo,ooo 12,00,000.00

7,29,64,100 12,95,810.00 1,17,50,000 11,75,000.00

t,29,68,100 12,96,810.00 1,17,50,000 1t"75,000.00

17.3 Subscribed and Pald-upShar€ Capital

Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up

1,29,58,100 1,17,50,000 11,75,000.00

1,29,58,100 12,96,810.00 1,17,50,000 11,75,000.00

L7,4

closins as on 31l3/202s 1,29,58,100

17.5 Terms/Ri8hts attached to EquityShares:
TheCompany has only one clsss ofOrdinary shares having afacevalue ofRs.lO pershare and each holder ofOrdinary shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Companydeclares and pays divid€nds in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed bythe Board of Directo15 (except interim dlvidend)is subjectto the approvalofthe
shareholders in the Annual General Meetin8s. The claim ofOrdlnary Shareholders on earnin8s and on assets in the event of llquidation, fo lows all others, in
proportion to their sha reholding-

17,5 Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Uttimate HotdingComp.ny

TheCompanydoes nothaveany HoldingCompany or Uhimate Holding Company.

17.7 Details of Equity shareholders holding more than5% sha res in the Company
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

No, ofShares % Holdin9 % Holding

Reconciliation of the number ofshares etthe beSinninS and.t the end ofthe year

OpeningNumberofSharerasot,0ll04l2024 L,t1,5O,OOO

Add: charye during the#ir 72,18,!Oo

OrdinaryShares of rs.10/- each fully paid

Mantalam Products Pvt. Ltd.

TonganiTea Co, Limited

ShantiOeviDaga

12,05,950

22,60,650

6,74,456

14.26

19.24

5.70

17.8

No ordinaryshares have been reserved for issue u.der options and co.tracts/commitments for the sale ofshares/ distnvestment as at the Bata.ce Sheet date.

17 9 TheCompany has not allotted anyequityshares aga inst consideration otherthan ca5h nor has allotted anyshares asfully paid up by wayofbonus shares nor has
boughtbackanysharesduringtheperiodoffiveyearsimmediatelyprecedintthedateatwhichtheBalanceSheetsprepared.

17,10 Duringthe FinancialYearthe Company tssued 12,18,100 (p.y. Nit)Eq!itysharesthrough private ptacement

17.11 No cals are unpaid by any Director or Officer ofthe Company during the year.

17.12 Disclosureof shareholdlngs by Promoters
sh;res he d oters at the end ofrhe

Chansesin%shareholdingsareduetodiluuoninshareholdtngof promoters after issue of equity shares during the financial

\*

As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st March,2024
% Change durirythe No. of Shares % oftotalshares

ManojKumar Daga 120501 0.93 0.10 120501 1.03
Shanti Devi Oaga 670056 5.t7 0.54 670056 5.70
Manoj Kumar oaga (HUF) 45946 0.3s 0.04 45946 0.39
Divisha Oaga 547343 4.53 4.41 587343 5.00
lyoti Devi DaBa 577300 4.45 0.46 571300 4.91
PallaviDaga 488416 3.17 0.39 488416 4.16
ManBalam Products Pvt.Ltd. 1205950 9.30 0.96 1205950 74.25
Tongani Tea Company Ltd. 2260650 77.43 1.81 2260650 \9.24
Anium lnvestments Pvt. Ltd. 88597 0.68 0.07 88597 0.75

87

17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

12,05,950

22,60,650

6,70,056

9.30

!1.43
5.17

12,96,810.00

k
\



As ar 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 202418 IN TRUMENTs ENTRIELY EOUIWTN NATURT

SHARE WARRANTS

(Fullyand compuLsorY Converu ble warra nts @ Rs 17l- each)

lssued Durlngthe year

No. ofwarrants (Rs ln Hundreds) No. ofwarEnts (Rs. tn Hundreds)

37,94100 6,44,997.00

Opening Balance as on 01.04 2024

Add: Subscribed DurinEthe Year

Less : convertedintoEquitYduringthevear

C osingBaLance as on 31.03 2025

O'IHEREQUITY

37,94,t04

(12,18,100)

1,61,249.27

(51,759.25)

76,OOO 1,09,480.02

19

19.3

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs. h Hundreds)

19.1 GenemlReserve

Balance at the beginning ofthe vear

BaLanc€ at the end oftheYear

19.2 Retained EarninF

fletained Earnings

Balance at the beSinning oftheyear
Add: Proflt for the year

Balance at the end of the year

Balanceatthe beginning of the y€ar

Add: Addltlon Ouringthe Year

Balance atthe end ofthe year

OtherReserves

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

2,50,000.00
(1,54,489.03)

a5,267.OO

45,026.21

2,50,000.00
(1,60,080.37)

45,026.27

L25,804.14 1,34,945.44

(Rs. h Hundreds) ( Rs. ln Bundred,
2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00

2,50,000.00 2,50,000.00

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs.ln Hundreds)

(1,50,080.37)

5,591.34

1,54,489.03) 1,60,080.37)

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

(Rs. h Hundreds) (Rs. h Hundreds)

85,267.00

85,267.00

19.4
3lstMarch 2025 31st March 2024

state Gprtal lnvestment subsidY

Balance at the end ofthe year

Sales Tax Remission Reserve

Balance at the end ofthe year

(Rs. ln Hundreds) Rs. ln Hundreds)

45,426.21 45,026.21

2,25,804.18 1,34,945.84

Current
NON"CU RAENT LIABILITI ES

rlnancialLiabilities
20 BORROWINGS

Total other ReseNe

Total Reserve &surplus

31st Mar.h 2025 31st March 2024 31st Mar.h 2025 31st March 2024

(Rs.ln Hundreds) (Rs. tn Hundreds) (Rs,In Hundreds) (Rs.ln Hundreds)

20.1 Term Loans

From Bank:

Rupee Loans

(Secured by Hypothecation ofthe related assets acquned)

23,7A2.95 8,463.35 8,707.43

32,475.O9 8,463.3s
(8,463.3s)

8,14J.43
(8,107.43)

23,782.95 32,475.09

(Secured by Hypothecation of the related assets

23,782.95 32,475.49

23,787..9s 32,475.09

181.95

8,463.35

8,463.35

a,!47.q3

8,107.43\tTotal
Amount disdosed under the head "Short Term Borrowings'

88
32,475.49

35 .43

NORBEN fEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

clN No. 101132W81990P1C048991

Notes to Financlal statements as on and forthe vear ended 3ltt March,2025

!4,904.14
(1,74,984.51)

34.3.10.00 34,310.00

10.1\6-21 74,716 2l

32,475.09

23,742.95



20.2 Unsecured Loan

From Body Corporate- Related Party

From Body Corporate - Other

20,3 Br€ak Up of Security Details

NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No, L0U32WB1990PLCO4a991

Notes to tinancial Statements as on and forthe yearended 3lst March,2025

52,200.00

5,79,t1t.345,39,800.00

5,39,800.00 6,31,331.38

23,182.95

5,39,800.00

32,475.O9

6,31,331.38

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs. lnlq!!.edsl (Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds)

20.4 Bate ofhterestand Re-Payment Schedule forterm Loan from State Bankofhdla:
Term Loan has to be availed within a period of5 month from the date of sanction (sanction Amount is Rs. 35 Lacs). Effective interest rate ofterm loan taken is 8.35 %

8,453.35 4,107.43

5,53,582.95 6,63,806.47 8,463.3s 8,107,43

p.a. Moratorium period ol6 Months and then in 84 monthly installments of Rs.416.67 (in hundreds)each with thefirst installment commencing on August 2022 and

20.5

2t

22.2

the last installmentfallingdue onJuly 2029. Term loan availed as on 31.03.2022 from State Bank oflndla is Rs.21,453.03 (in hundreds)

Rate of lnterest and Re-Payment schedul€ forterm toan from Mahindra & Mahindla Financia, services Limited
Term Loan amountingto Rs.8,200.00 (in hundreds)has been avaied to purchase vehide. Effective interest rate ofterm loan taken is 7.50 % p.a. Term Loan is

Repayable in 60 monthly installments ofRs. 173.30 (in hundreds)each with thefirst installment commencing on luly 2022 and the last installmentfallingdLre on

August 2027.

Term Loan amountingto Rs.8,900.00 (in hundreds)has been availed to purchase vehide. Effective interest rate ofterm loan taken is 12.08 % p.a. Terr. Loan i5

Repayable in 59 month ly installm ents of Rs. 199.00 (i. hundreds)each with the first installment commencing on June 2023 and the last installment falllng due on

April 2028.

PROVISIONS Non Current Current

Provision for Employee Beneflts

Plovision for Ooubtful Debts

CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT FINANCIAL IIABII.ITIES

22 SHORTTERM BORROWINGS

22.1 The above a mou nt includes
Secured Borrowinss

43,437.23

3,107.55

Total

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Rs.ln Hu

' Vehicle Loan from Financiallnstitution
- Term Loan from State Banl of lndia

Loans Repayableon Demand

- Wo*ing Capital Loan from Eanks

- Stand By Line of Credlt
- Wo*ing Capita I Loan from Eanks (Garden)

3,25,!64.19
36,333.81

9,904.43

3,107.39
5,000.04

22.3

Terms and conditionr of Cu rre nt Borrowings
The Current Borrowings from State Bank of lndia are secured primariy by way of hypothecation of nocks oftea.rops, Ereen eaves, stores & spares, book debrs,

othercurrent assets, plant & machinery and otherfixed assets, equltable monga8e of allpiece and parceiof land measurlnEapprox 126 acres and and buidtngrhere

on under BerubarlG.P.Sltuated at OistJalpaiEuri,and furthersecured by personal guarantee ofPromoter Director.l. e. sri Manoj Kuma. Daga.

The ag8regate amount ofloan guaranteed by Director is Rs.3,70,473.29 (PreviousYear Rs. 3,79,509.86) (in hundreds)

Th e present applica ble rate of interest per a nnu m for Cash Credit loan from Stare Bank of ndia is 10.35 % .

Ihe present appllcable rate ofinterest per annum for Stand by llne ofCredit oan from State Bank oftndiats 11.35 %.

1,7o,473.29 3,79,509.85

3,79,509.86

1,7O,47!.29 3,79,509.85

(Rs. ln Hundreds) {Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds)

3t,220.61 40,287.91

23 TRADE PAYABTES

31st March 2025 31st March 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Oues to Micro and Smal Enterprises

Oues to Credito6 other than Micro & sma I Enterprises
For Goods & Services

89
,i!

37 220.67 40,241.97

Total

6A,ZZA.9A

45,538.78 58,228.08

3,463.31
s,000.04

3,15,759.02

36,329.22

9,921.70

3,70,473.29

Refer

r



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMIIED
CIN No. 101132W81990P1C048991

Notesto Fina ncial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2025

23.1 Disc osureas required underthe Mirro, Smalland Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, tothe extent asce(ained, and as per notification number GSR 679 (E)

dated 4th September,2015. The Company has complled this information based on lntimation received from the suppliers ofthelr natus as Micro or Sm all Enterprises

and/or its reglstration with appropriateauthority underthe Mlcro, Smal and Medium Enterprises Act,2006 ("MSMEDAcf').

Particulars 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

The amount of interest peid bythe buyer in terms

ol section 16 of the Mlcro, Small and Medium

Enterprises oevelopment Act, 2006, alongwith the

amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day durlng each accounting

NIL NIL

The amount of interest due and payable fo. the
period of delay in making payment but without
addinB the interest specifled under the Micro,

smal and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006

NIL NIL

iti The amount of interest accrued and remaining
unpald atthe end of each accountingyear NIL N]L

iv The amount of fu.ther lnterest remaining due and

payable even in the succeeding years, until such

date when the inlerest due. above are actually
pald to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, ,Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Acl 2005.

NIL NIL

2r.2 the ble

24 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILIIIES

OutstandinS forfollowlng periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2025 (as on

3L.O3.z0z)
1-2 years 2 3 years

(i) MsME
(il)oth€rs 22,379.14 440.40 601.76 13,799.36 37,224.61

(25,099.75) (1,010.82) (337.21) (13,840.12) 140,287 _91)

{iii) oisputed dues'MsME
(iv) Disputed dues -Others

31st March 2025 31stMarch 2024 31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Current

(Rs. ln Hundr€ds) (Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. h Hundreds)

lnterest AccrLred on Sorrowings 16,133.9s

4,858.31

30,794.88

6,535.95

2\,002.26 37,330.84

24.1

25

There are no amounts due for payment tothe lnvestor Education and Protection Fund atthe year end.

EMPLOYEES BENEFITS OELIGATIONS

salaries & Wages Payable

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs,lnlqldreds)

23,744.69 24,t1,5.70

23,744.69 24,115.10

CurrentNon Current

Others

31st March 2025 31st Mafth 2024 31st March 2024
(8s. ln Hundreds) (Rr. ln Hundreds) (Bs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds)

1,72,777.67

94.12

59,442.26

540.95

27 REVENUE FAOM OPERATIONS

31st March 2025 3lstMarch 2024

{Rs.ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundredsl

6,96,856.28

35,904.00

5,64,944.44

56,628.00

32,455.83

i$
F

Sale of Products

SaleofCuttings

Other Operating Revenue

Commission lncome

9o

U{-

1,65,216.11 6,5),525.23

o*'l

25 OTHER LIAEILITIES

31st March 2025

- - 1Jr.?11.19 59 q81 71

35,952.19

(,'
(



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. 10U32W81990P[C048991
Notes to Financial Statements as on and forthe year ended 31st Marcl! 2025

28 OTHER INCOME

31st March 2025

{Rs. h Hun.lreds) (Rs,ln Hundreds)

29

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contrlbutionto Provldent and Other Funds

5taff Welfare Expenses

Gratulty

31 f|NANCE COST

{rNcRlasE]/ DECREASE rN TNVENTORTES OF

FINISHEDGOODS

lnte.est Exp€ns€s

To Banks on Term Loans

To Sanks On Working Ca pital Loans

To lnterest on lJnsecured Loan

To lnterest on Other Loans

Other Borrowiry Costs

Other Financial Charges

2,555.36 3,474.34

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs. In Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds)

50,652.37

1,609.s9

568.79

7,750.77

85.19

TotalchanSesin lnventories of finish€d toods

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

87,980.80
50,552.37096.00

141,443.63) 37,328.43

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
(Rs. ln Hundreds) (Rs. ln Hundreds)

3,42,527.11

34,400.09

34,809.14

7,039.32

3,44,427.41

34,388.70

33,044.57

1,593.t!

4,14,775.66 4,23,493.39

IRs.ln Hundreds) (8s.ln Hundredsl

31st March 2025 31st March 2024

3,424.74

31,907.83

11,137.90

3,936.s4

4,490.o1

29,861.86

54,942.22

2,097.07

32 DEPRECIATIONANDAMORTIZAT!ONEXPENSES

2,3/6.26 1,896.93

1,07,334.1s

(Rs.ln Hundred, (Rs.ln Hundreds)

31st March 2025 3lstMarch 2024

Depreclation on Tangible Assers
AmorUzauon on Bearer Plants

42,614.23

17,680.05

60,290.28 s8,066.74

(Rs.ln Hundreds) (Rs. rn Hundreds)
31st March 2025 31st March 2024

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Maierlals

Repairsto Buildings

Repairs to Machinery
Repair5to Other Assets

Manufacturing Expenses

Freight, Shipping, Delivery Charges &
SellinB Expenses

Commission &Brokerates
Auditors' RemLrneration

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets

Provision for Doubtfu Debts

Directors Fees & Commlssion
Legaland Professional Cha r8es

Adveltisement Expenses

Travel ing & Conveyance Expenses

Preferential lssue Expenses

79,215.46

99,701.41

2,024.77

6,899.68

75.00

32,010.87

?7,34143
98,243.80

1,243.s2

6,192.80

298.15

32,265.!8

6,631.69

6,325.O2

1,500.00

340.04

13,534.56
a hSs L,

883.34

1,135.00

3,570.04

6 539.23

8,954.45h&

o.t
J!

2,34,296.74 2,03,t04.24

31st March 2024

lnterest lncome

On Bank Deposit

Proflt on sale oflnvestments (net)

1,500.00

622.43

66.58

366 3s

33 OTHER EXPENsES

FinishedGoods
Opening lnventories
Closlng lnventories

42,595.82

15,410.92

1,13,L77.32

11,390.51

8,346.99

9s0.00

13,958.08

3,107.55

1,s30.98

1,135.00

9,958.63

s,000.00

532.50'
70,729.51,

8,853.98



NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN No. 101132W81990P1C048991

Notes to Flnanclal Statements as on and forthe year ended 31st March, 2025

33,1 Auditors'Remunention

31st March 2025 3lstMarch 2024
(Rs. ln Hundfeds) (Rs. ln Hundred,

750.00

200.00

1,500.00

950.00 1,500_00

(Rs.ln Hundreds) (Rs.ln Hundred,

350.76 1,689.41

3s0.75 1,689.41

(R!. ln Hundreds) (Rs.ln Hundreds)
31st March2025 31st March 2024

34 TAX EXPENSES

31stMarch2025 31st March 2024

lncomeTaxfor earlleryear

35 OTHER COM PREHENSIVE INCOME

Remeasurement ofthe defined beneflt plans

Less:Tax expense on the above

Total

31,336.07
(8,069.04)

(6,609.73)

7,742.4t
23,267.03 14,9A7.72)

23,267.03 14,9A7 -72)

.1,1,

?i

qL

Statutorv Auditors

35.1 Items th.twillnot be rcclassified to profit or loss
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35.

37

56.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR:

a) lncome tax liability not provided for:

Above mentioned liabilities are Disputed lncome Tax liabilities which are pending with lncome tax
department hence not provided for.

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt:
The W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess of Rs.2,780.00( in hundreds) was not acknowledged by the company as debt
and had been written back to the accounts in the year 2O13-f4. The management is confident that no
liability would arise on W.B.R.E. & P.E. Cess.

Balance of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation,
ln view of the management these amounts are receivable/paya ble in the ordinary course of

business.

ln terms of the lnd AS 108, issued by the lCAl, neither a business se
has been identified as reportable segment during the year.

ogra p hical segment

Name of the
statute

Nature of dues Amount (Rupees

in Hundreds)
Amount paid

un der
dispute

(Rupees in
Hundreds)

Period to which
the amount

relates
(Financial Year)

Forum where
dispute is

pending

lncome Tax lncome Tax 24,650.0O 1995-1996 DClT, Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 8,456.70 t,693.44 2010-2077 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 62,557.70 9,393.66 20L2-2073 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 5,809.70 1,181.50 20L3-20L4 Appellate
Tribunal,
Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 77,774.64 r,zLO.OO 2076-20L7 CIT(A), Kolkata

lncome Tax lncome Tax 2018-20L9 CIT(A), National
Faceless

Department,
New Delhi

39
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NORBEN TEA & EXPORTS LIMITED

NOTES ON FINANCIAT STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025

1639.87

b) Estimated amount of expenditure remaining to be executed on capital account (net of amount
already expended) Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. NIL).



40 Total value of stores & spare parts and packing material consumed: lndigenous - 100% - Rs. L9,275.46
(Previous year - lndigenous - 100% - Rs.27,347.43).

4f. lncome and Expenditure in Foreign Currency- Rs. Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil).

42. AdditionalResulatorvlnformation:

i) Title Deeds of lmmovable Property not held in the name of the Company

Title Deeds of lmmovable Property are held in the name of the Company therefore the disclosure

requirement w.r.t the Title Deeds of lmmovable Property not held in the name of the Company are not
applicable to the company in terms of Para 6(LXi) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act.

ii) The Fair Valuation of lnvestment Property is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer

The Company dods not hold any lnvestment property and therefore the disclosure requirement w.r.t
the Fair Value is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer is not applicable to the company in
terms of Para 5(LXii) of .iart I of Schedule-lll of the Act

I

iii) The Revaliration of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) is based on
the valuation by a Registered Valuer

The Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) has not been done
and therefore the disclosuie requirement w.r.t the revaluation is based on the valuation by a

Registered Valuer is not applicable to the company in terms of Para 5(LXiii) of Part I of Schedule-lll of
the Act

iv) The Revaluation of lntangible Assets is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer

The Company does not hold any lntangible Assets and therefore the disclosure requirement w.r.t the
Revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer is not applicable to the company in terms
of Para 6(L)(iv) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act

v) Loans or Advances granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties
The Company has not granted loan to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under the Companies Act 2013) during the year under audit and therefore the disclosure requirement
w.r.t Loans or Advances granted to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties in terms of Para

6(LXv) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

vi) CapitalWork-ln-Progress
There is no Capital Work-in-Progress(C-WlP) during the current financlal year and therefore the
disclosure requirement w.r.t Capital Work-ln-Progress are not applicable to the company in terms of
Para 6(L)(iv) of Part I of Schedule-lll oftheAct

vii) lntangible Asset Under Development
There is no lntangible Asset Under Development during the current financial year and therefore the
disclosure requirement w.r.t lntangible Asset Under Development are not applicable to the company in
terms of Para 6(L)(vii) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act

qq
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viii) Details of Benami Property held:
Neither any proceedings have been initiated nor any proceedings are pending against the Company for
holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the Rules
made thereunder.
ln view of this, the disclosure requirement in terms of Para 6(L)(viii) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act
are not applicable to the Company.

ix) Quarterly Returns or Statements of Current Assets and reconciliation thereof

The Company has not borrowed any money either from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets only, hence, stock statement is not mandatory to file and therefore
disclosrire requirement as to quarterly Returns or statements of current assets and reconciliation
thereof in terms of Para 6(t)(ix)(a) of Part lof Schedule-lll of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

x) Wilful Defairlter
The Company has,not been declared as Wilful Defaulter by any Bank or Financial lnstitutions or other
lender and therefore, the disclosure requirement w.r.t Wilful Defaulter in terms of Para 6(L)(x) of Part I

of Schedule-lll of the Act are not applicable to the company

xi) Relationship with Struck Off Companies
The Company has not entered into transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the
Companies Act,2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 and therefore disclosure requirement
w.r.t Relationship with Struck Off Companies in terms of Para 6(LXxi) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act
is not applicable to the Company

xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

" No charges or satisfaction which remains unregistered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
utory period.

xiii) Compliance with Number of Layers of Companies
No investment has been made in any company, thus the disclosure requirement w.r.t Compliance with
number of layers of Companies in terms of Para 6(L)(xiii) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

xiv) Financial Ratio Analysis:

Current ratio
Total Current

Asset
Total Current

Lia bilities
0.51 o.32 59.38

lncrease in
current assets

Debt Equity
Ratio

Debt Ca pital Shareholder's
Eq uity

0.5723 0.7965 -28.15
Decrease in
Borrowings

Debt Service

coverage
ratio

EBITDA-CAPEX

Debt Service
(lnt+Principal) 0.1532 4605.88

lncrease in
Profit / EBITDA

i!

!";
.J':q5

lt;O '
(:.

Ratios Numerator Denominator
Current

Reporting
Period

P-revious

reporting
period

96 ol
Change

Reason

-0.0034



Return on
Eq uity Ratio

Profit for the year -0.L217 -90.t4
Decrease in

Loss
-0.0120

LL,92
lncrease in
Turnover

-7 )2.
lnventory
Turnover

Ratio

Net Turnover

lncrease in
Turnover

46.96 29.03 67.76Net Turnover
Average

trade
receivables

Trade
Receiva bles

turnover ratio

762.56
Closing Trade

Paya bles
4.38

Tota I Purchases
(Fuel Cost +

Other Expenses +

Closing lnventory
-OPening

lnventory)

lncrease in
Sa les

Working
capital (CA-

cL)

-2.77 -7.78
Net capital

turnover ratio

Sa les -0.0231 -o.2587
Decrease in

Loss

Net profit
ratio

lncrease in

Ca pital
Employed

Return on
Capital

employed

Earnings before
interest and tax

Capital
Employed

0.0427 -0.0299 -242.81

0.00 77.04 -100.00Return on
investment

Profit on sale of
lnvestment

Average
lnvested

Fund

xv) Compliance with Approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

During the year under Audit, no Scheme of Arrangements have been approved the Competent
Authority in terms of Sections 230 lo 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, the disclosure

requirement w.r.t Compliance with Approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements in terms of Para 6(L)(xv) of
Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

xvi) Utilization of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium

A. During the year under Audit, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including Foreign Entities (lntermediate) and therefore, disclosure requirement as to
Utilization of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium in terms of Para 6(L)(xvi)(A) of Part I of Schedule-lll
of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

B. During the year under Audit, the Company has not received funds from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including Foreign Entities (Funding Party) and therefore, disclosure requlrement as to Utilization of
Borrowed Funds and Share Premium in terms of Para 6(L)(xvi)(B) of Part I of Schedule-lll of the Act are

$l
=i

not applicable to the Company.

q6 C-a

Average

Shareholder's
Eq uity

6.46
Average
lnventory

lncrease in
Purchases

11.50
Trade

payables

turnover ratio

55.62Sa les

-9L.O7Net Profit

Due to
decrease in
profit on sale

of investments

I
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xvii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts

that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under

the lncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the

lncome Tax Act, 1961). Hence, reporting in terms of Para 7(l) of Part ll of Schedule-lll - Division

ll of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

xviii) The Company is not covered under section 135 of The Companies Act 2013 and hence

Corporate Social Responsibility Activities are not required to be done by the company

Particulars Amount

Gross Amount Required to be spent by the company during the year

Related Party transactions as per lnd AS 24:n relation to CSR Expenditure

Provision made in'relat:on to CSR expenditure

N.A

N.A

N.A

xix) The compeny has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the
financial y€ar. Hence, reporting in terms of Para 7(n) of Part ll of Schedule-lll of the Act is not

applicabl; to the Company.

The company has sufficient. liquidity for continuing its business operations. The company is also

confident about its ability to service its debt and other financial liabilities.

Related Party Transactions -Names of related parties and description of relationship: -

Relationship Name

Name of the Company in which Directors/ Key

Managerial Personnel and their relatives have

significant influence

Tongani Tea Company Limited
Mangalam Products Private Limited
Anjum lnvestments Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Manoj Kumar Daga - Managing Director
Mr. Ashok Vardhan Bagree - Director
(Appointed on 9th August 2024)
Mrs. Komal Bhotika - Director
(Appointed on gth August 2024)
Mr. Ranjan Kumar Jhalaria - Director
(Completion of Term on gth August 2024)
Mrs. Swati Agarwal - Director
(Completion of Term on 9th August 2024)
Mr. Balkisha n Agarwal- Director
Mrs. Tanushree Chatterjee - Director
Mr. Dipak Tiwari - Director
Mrs. Payal Surolia, CFO

(Resigned on 14th December 2024)
Ms. Muskan Bhimrajka
(Appointed on 13th February 2025)
Mr. Niraj Tiwari - Company Secretary

$\. o

EIT
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individuals having significant influence over

reporting entity
Nil

Particulars of transactions and closing balances during the ar" (Rs. in h u ndreds)

The figures in bracket represent corresponding amount of the previous year.

Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped to confirm the presentation requirements

under IND AS and the requirements lald down in the Schedule-lll ofthe companies Act, 2013.

As pbr our report of even date.

For A O MITTAL & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 014640C

N.-- \. b :-*. dW
ASHOK VARDHAN BAGREE

lndependent Director
(DlN:00a21623)

M;-rAko,r, Pal^i',v'he1E'-

MUSKAN BHIMRAJKA

Chief Financial Officer

MANOJ KUMAR DAGA

Chairman & Mg. Director
(DlN:00123386)

at;(l-.t^, r* a^
Hahul Kurhar Strah

Pa rtne r
}:

:;
o

Membership No. 307027

Place: Kolkata

NIRAJ TIWARI

Company Secretary
Membership No. 470479

REO

Date: The 28th day of May,2025
UDIN: 2l-3,1-y2-4,i v ti2 F?\L)-

Ba la nce as on 31st

March,2025
Key Managerial

Personnel
Enterprises over which Key

Managerial Person nel have

significant influence

Natu re of
transactions

15,868.50
(2,097.s0)(74,743.94)(-)

1,135.00Sitting Fees
(--)(1,13s.00)(-)

26,600.00Loan

of
U nsecured
Taken (Net

repayment)
(72,2O0.0O)(17,200.00)

8,748.59lnterest Paid
(9,086.08)(10,095.66)

14,850.00Sale of Plant
(Agriculture Sale)

(-)(14,8s0.00)

98

Remuneration 838.00

98,800.00

45.
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